
- 1 - 

 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

MEETING OF THE JOINT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
 

TUESDAY 1ST DECEMBER 2009 
AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE 

 
 

MEMBERS: Councillors S. R. Colella (Chairman), D. L. Pardoe (Vice-Chairman), 
A. N. Blagg, Mrs. M. Bunker, R. J. Deeming, Mrs. R. L. Dent, 
Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths, Mrs. J. D. Luck, S. R. Peters, 
C. R. Scurrell, Mrs. C. J. Spencer, C. B. Taylor, C. J. Tidmarsh and 
L. J. Turner 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. To receive apologies for absence  
 

2. Declarations of Interest and whipping arrangements  
 

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the Joint Overview and Scrutiny 
Board held on 9th June 2009 (Pages 1 - 2) 
 

4. Joint Overview and Scrutiny Board Work Programme 2009-2010 (Pages 3 - 
24) 
 

5. Update of the Medium Term Financial Plan 2010/11-2012/13 (Pages 25 - 40) 
 

6. Treasury Strategy (Pages 41 - 48) 
 

7. Scrutiny of Crime and Disorder (Pages 49 - 68) 
 

8. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 



- 2 - 

commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman considers to be of so 
urgent a nature that it cannot wait until the next meeting  
 

 K. DICKS 
Chief Executive  

 
 
The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B60 1AA 
 
23rd November 2009 
 



 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 

MEETING OF THE JOINT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
 

TUESDAY, 9TH JUNE 2009 AT 6.00 P.M. 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors A. N. Blagg, Mrs. M. Bunker, S. R. Colella, R. J. Deeming, 
Mrs. R. L. Dent, B. Lewis F.CMI, D. L. Pardoe, Mrs. C. J. Spencer, 
C. B. Taylor, C. J. Tidmarsh and L. J. Turner 
 

 Invitees:  Sarah Campkin 
 
Observers:  Councillor P. M. McDonald 
 

 Officers: Mrs. C. Felton, Mrs. S. Sellers and Ms. P. Ross 
 
 

1/09 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor S. R. Collella be elected Chairman of the Board 
for the ensuing municipal year. 
 

2/09 ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor D. L. Pardoe be elected Vice-Chairman of the 
Board for the ensuing municipal year. 
 

3/09 APOLOGIES  
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths. 
 

4/09 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest or whipping arrangements were received. 
 

5/09 PETITION ON HOT FOOD TAKE AWAYS  
 
Members were asked to receive and consider a petition received from 
residents and shopkeepers within the Rubery area.  The petition highlighted 
issues around late night opening of hot food take away establishments, 
including an increase in litter, crime and disorder and anti-social behaviour. 
 
The Chairman welcomed Sarah Campkin, a shop owner in Rubery High Street 
to the meeting.  Ms. Campkin informed the Board that the petition continued to 
be signed by residents with a further 1,000 signatures added.  Ms. Campkin 
explained that residents and shopkeepers had expressed concerns that 
currently 14 out of 83 shops on the High Street were hot food takeaways with 
planning applications for 4 more hot food takeaways to be submitted to 
Bromsgrove District Council.  Residents and shop owners were concerned 
that the late night opening of hot food takeaways was encouraging a night 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Joint Overview and Scrutiny Board 
9th June 2009 

- 2 - 

time culture in a village environment.  The Police had been made aware of 
concerns and issues such as windows being smashed and  shopkeepers 
having to clean up debris and sanitise the area outside their shop premises.  
Ms Campkin also expressed concern that letters and a petition she had 
personally handed in to Bromsgrove District Council had been lost. The 
Monitoring Officer informed Ms. Campkin that she would receive a full 
explanation as to what had happened to the petition after the Council had 
received it.  Ms. Campkin also invited Members to consider whether 
Bromsgrove District Council could adopt a moratorium on opening any more 
hot food takeaways.  She stated that other Local Councils had done so for 
example with only 1 in 20 premises or a total of 6% of retail outlets being used 
as hot food takeaway establishments. 
 
The Monitoring Officer briefly informed Ms. Campkin of the role of the Board.  
In summary, the Board could not scrutinise regulatory committees or 
regulations; it’s role was to scrutinise and investigate the available options for 
future direction in policy review and development and make any relevant 
recommendations to the specific service areas. 
 
At the Chairman’s discretion, Councillor P. M. McDonald, Ward Member for 
Waseley, spoke in favour of the petition and raised concerns about recent 
planning applications and planning processes.  He also expressed concern 
about a lack of enforcement resources to tackle hot food takeaways who were 
in breach of their licence by opening until 2:00am.   
 
Following further discussion and questions from Members, the Senior Solicitor 
informed the Chairman that concerns and issues around hot food takeaways 
had been discussed during a recent meeting of the Scrutiny Board.  Councillor 
C. B. Taylor informed the meeting that officers had been tasked to scope and 
provide further information on other authorities’ policy guidelines on hot food 
takeaway stores.  The Chairman invited Ms. Campkin to attend the next 
meeting of the Scrutiny Board at which officers would provide updates. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a)  that, at the next meeting of the Scrutiny Board, the Board considers 

 the following issues on hot food takeaways, as discussed by the Joint 
 Overview and Scrutiny Board, namely: Litter, Enforcement and Crime 
 and Disorder; and  

(b)  that the Portfolio Holder for Economic Development be invited to attend 
 the next meeting of the Scrutiny Board with regards to encouraging a
 wider range of retail shops in Rubery and throughout the District.  

 
  
 

The meeting closed at 7.50 p.m. 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 2



 1 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

JOINT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY BOARD 
 

1ST DECEMBER 2009 
 

JOINT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY BOARD 
 WORK PROGRAMME 2009-2010 

 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Cllr G. N. Denaro  
Responsible Head of Service Claire Felton – Head of Legal, 

Equalities and Democratic Services 
Non-Key Decision 
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report presents the new Joint Overview and Scrutiny Board (JOSB) 

Work Programme and outlines the process and rationale for the Overview 
and Scrutiny Work planning process for 2009-2010.   
 

1.2 Overview and Scrutiny is a vehicle for non-executive elected Members of 
the Council to engage in the local decision making process.  The objective 
of the work planning process is to identify key issues for consideration 
where Overview and Scrutiny can make a constructive impact upon the 
local democratic decision making process, to help the Council and its 
community partners achieve their vision and objectives and promote 
community well being.   

 
1.3 The Overview and Scrutiny Work Planning Schedule is outlined at Appendix 

1.   
 
2.  RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
2.1 Members of the JOSB are requested to:  

a. Note the Overview and Scrutiny work planning process for 2009-
2010; 

b. agree the JOSB Work Programme for 2009-2010 (as set out in 
Appendix 3); 

c. agree 2 further meetings of the JOSB on 10th February 2010 and 
on 9th March 2010;  

d. identify evidence to be considered for each item on the agreed work 
programme. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1.      On 29th April 2009 the Council agreed that, following the trial period 

the overview and scrutiny function continue to be performed by an 
Overview Board and a Scrutiny Board and a new Joint Overview and 
Scrutiny Board was also created to deal with specific functions.  

Agenda Item 4

Page 3



 2 

 
3.2. Overview and Scrutiny can be undertaken by the Overview Board, the 

Scrutiny Board, the JOSB, scrutiny task groups, and jointly with 
scrutiny committees of other local authority councils. The Boards 
cannot make executive decisions but can make recommendations to 
the Cabinet and other local decision makers.   

 
3.3. A meeting of the Council on Wednesday 29th April 2009 defined the 

role of the JOSB.  The Council resolved: 
“(a) that a Joint Overview and Scrutiny Board be created to 
enable the 
Council to discharge the following functions: Councillor Calls for 
Action, Crime and Disorder Calls for Action, Petitions, scrutiny of 
the budget; and that it be designated as the Crime and Disorder 
Committee in accordance with the Police and Justice Act 2006; 
(b) that the overview and scrutiny functions (other than those 
referred to above) continue to be performed separately by an 
Overview Board and the Scrutiny Board”.   

 
3.4. In order to capture the key issues currently facing the Council and to 

make the process inclusive, there has been consultation and 
discussion on the possible topics for the work programme undertaken.  
The process followed for this is outlined below.   

 
3.5. The Overview and Scrutiny Work Planning Workshop held on 6th 

October 2009 considered the key strategic issues identified for the 
Council and its community partners where Overview and Scrutiny can 
constructively add value to the decision making process.   

 
3.6. The JOSB is asked to agree to schedule 2 further meetings of the 

JOSB on 10th February 2010 and on 9th March 2010.  The Overview 
and Scrutiny Work Programme for the remainder of 2009/2010 has 
now been drawn up and scheduled around the meetings for this 
municipal year.   

 
3.7. The Council Constitution requires that the JOSB agree its own work 

programme and the topics identified so far are now presented to the 
JOSB for ratification.   

 
4.0 THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PLANNING PROCESS 
 
4.1. In order to identify possible topics for Members to consider for the 

Work Programme, a process was established to consult and identify 
key issues (Appendix 1).  A list of possible items for Overview and 
Scrutiny was drawn up to include the suggestions for topics from 
various sources.   

 
4.2. The work of Overview and Scrutiny may include topics which review 

existing policies and services and make recommendations for 

Page 4



 3 

improvement, or may consider policy development, for example in 
response to new Government legislation or guidance.  Topics for 
Overview and Scrutiny should be strategic in scope and aimed at 
making recommendations to the Cabinet, Council or other local 
decision makers, or where overview for democratic probity is required.   

 
4.3. In order to identify the key issues for Overview and Scrutiny and to 

make the process inclusive, possible items for future scrutiny work 
were identified in a variety of ways:  

 
v On 17th September 2009 the Chairman of the JOSB wrote to all 

Councillors to ask for suggestions for possible topics, which 
yielded several topic proposals; 

v The Corporate Management Team (CMT) have been asked to 
identify key issues for Overview and Scrutiny; 

v The JOSB has considered its work programme and identified 
suggested topics; 

v The Council's Forward Plan and Supplementary List of Future 
Items have been taken into account.   

 
4.4. Suggested topics have been put forward by elected Members and by 

CMT.  No topics have been submitted recently by members of the 
public or by community partners, although it may be considered good 
practice in future to have wider engagement in identifying suggested 
topics.  Members of the public and elected councillors may also submit 
proposals at any time during the year.   

 
4.5. A work planning workshop was held on 6th October 2009 to consider 

and prioritise topics.  The priority topics identified have now been 
scheduled and timetabled around the scheduled meetings for 
2009/2010, according to available time and resources.   

 
5. THE WORK PLANNING WORKSHOP 6TH OCTOBER 2009  
 
5.1. On 6th October 2009 an Overview and Scrutiny Work Planning 

Workshop was organised.  The purpose of the Work Planning 
Workshop was to enable Members of Overview and Scrutiny to 
consider the topics suggested for the 2009/2010 Overview and 
Scrutiny Work Programme and identify which topics are to be included 
and prioritised.    

 
5.2. During the workshop, Overview and Scrutiny Members prioritised the 

issues that they wish to include on the scrutiny work programme. 
 

5.3. The following queries were used as guidance criteria: 
 

v Is it a priority issue for the Council or the Local Strategic 
Partnership?   

v Is it an important issue for local residents? 

Page 5



 4 

v Is it a topic where Overview and Scrutiny could feasibly and 
constructively make recommendations?   

v Is it a topic where external review would be helpful? 
v Is it a topic where a review could be made in time to make 

recommendations for the executive decision making process?   
v Is it a poorly performing service?   
v Is it a review that could render significant savings or value for 

money?   
v Is the topic strategic in scope?   

 
5.4. Members were also asked to consider the objectives of the topic, ie 

what the Overview and Scrutiny investigation would be trying to 
achieve and if it would be achievable within the timescale available.   

 
5.5. The following criteria were also used by members in identifying what 

issues are not suitable for Overview and Scrutiny:  
 

v Issues which could be dealt with more effectively as a Member 
Enquiry, 

v Issues where it would be infeasible for Overview and Scrutiny 
to make realistic recommendations, 

v Issues which are for information only and may be better dealt 
with through a Member briefing or Member training, 

v Issues which are already being dealt with in a similar way 
elsewhere (duplication), 

v Issues where the matter is sub judice or prejudicial to the 
Council's interests, 

v Issues where the matter relates to a specific case within the 
complaints procedure, 

v The issue relates to an individual disciplinary matter or 
grievance.  

 
5.6. The Overview and Scrutiny work programme should ideally include a 

balance of different types of topics, including short, medium and long 
term investigations. Some topics could be considered at one-off, 'select 
committee' style meetings; others may be more in-depth investigatory 
scrutiny exercises.  There should ideally be a mix of topic themes 
across the Council and community partner services and reflecting the 
different Council and LSP priority areas.  Bromsgrove District Council 
Vision, Values and Objectives are given for reference at Appendix 2.   

 
5.7. Using the criteria above, Members were asked to prioritise the topics 

as:  
- “High”,  
- “Medium” or  
- “Low”.   

 
5.8. Members were asked to identify no more than 8-10 “High” priority 

topics.  This was divided between the JOSB and the Scrutiny Board 

Page 6



 5 

(see Allocation of Topics below).  These topics will be given greatest 
priority in the Work Programme.   

 
5.9. The remaining topics will be scheduled in order of priority.  As it will not 

be possible to consider all topics during the year, the prioritised topics 
will tend to be scheduled first and lower priority topics will be held in 
reserve.  Topics not considered in 2009-2010 may be scheduled for 
2010-2011 or reconsidered in the work planning process.   

 
6. Allocation of Topics 
 
6.1. Topics have been allocated to the Overview Board, the Scrutiny Board 

or the JOSB, according to the topic and the respective terms of 
reference of the Boards.  More in-depth Overview and Scrutiny 
investigations may be carried out through Task Groups, which meet 
outside of the formal committee process to investigate particular issues 
and report back to one of the main Overview and Scrutiny Boards with 
a report and recommendations.   

 
6.2. Topics vary in size and scope, but it is advised that generally no more 

than 2 substantive items be allocated to each Board meeting, as well 
as Task Groups, commissioned by each Board, carrying out work 
outside of the formal committee process and reporting back.  Members 
will need to take a realistic view as to how many Task Groups it is 
possible to operate at any one time given the level of resources 
needed both in terms of Member time and officer support.  It is 
suggested that any issues relating to the number of Task Groups be 
addressed by consultation between the Chairmen of the Boards and 
the Head of Legal Equalities and Democratic Services.   

 
6.3. The allocation of topics should allow room for additional items to be 

added during the municipal year, although it is advised that this be 
avoided as far as possible and key issues identified in advance.  
Additional items may arise from a Call In of a Cabinet Decision, a 
Councillor Call for Action, a topic proposal submission, referral from 
The Council or Leader and Cabinet, petitions or a Joint Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee proposal from another local authority’s scrutiny 
committee.   

 
6.4. The proposed Work Programme for the JOSB is attached at Appendix 

3.  Dates of consideration are to be confirmed.  When agreed, this 
programme will inform the work of the Overview and Scrutiny Boards 
for the remainder of the municipal year.   

 
7. JOSB Task Groups 
 
7.1. Task Groups enable Members to go outside the formal committee 

setting and consider issues in-depth.  They also enable other non-

Page 7



 6 

executive Members, who are not currently members of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Boards, to be become involved in the scrutiny process.   

 
7.2. There are no topics identified as Task Group investigations for the 

JOSB at this stage, although it is possible that Task Group 
investigations may be commissioned by the JOSB in the future on 
topics within its terms of reference.  Task Group investigations are 
topics that may benefit from in-depth consideration and may involve 
Member led research.   

 
8. Scoping and Planning Topics 
 
8.1. The issues identified for consideration need to be defined to give a 

precise definition of the area for review and to avoid confusion of 
issues.   

 
8.2. Initially, Members were asked to consider the title and description of 

the topics and these have now been identified.  
 

8.3. Members are now asked to start to consider and identify the precise 
aims and objectives for review, as well as possible outcomes, evidence 
to be considered and other details for each topic.   

 
8.4. This is an opportunity for Members to identify what evidence they wish 

to consider for each chosen topic.  Evidence may include: 
 

v Witnesses – people who can talk to the committee about the 
chosen topic.  These may be service users, interest groups, 
voluntary groups, other service providers, partner agencies, 
experts in the field or officers of the council. 

v Documentary evidence – this may include background papers, 
written testimonials, academic research, government guidance, 
officer reports etc.   

v Site visits – places where Members should visit as part of their 
investigation, eg looking at service delivery on the ground, visiting 
other service providers, looking at physical environments and 
places etc.   

 
8.5. In planning their work Members should also consider and identify: 

 
• Key stakeholders 

Ø Decision makers 
Ø Partner Agencies.   
Ø Lead Officers and Department 
Ø Service user representatives 
Ø Voluntary groups 
Ø Minority groups 
 

Page 8



 7 

• Council / LSP Targets – Any strategic targets that the issues 
relate to inc CAA targets and LAA targets and any other corporate 
or community targets which may be relevant.   

 
• Key Background Papers – Strategic plans, Government 

legislation or guidance, Council policies etc that are relevant to the 
policy and services concerned.   

 
9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1. There are no direct budgetary implications arising from the 

recommendations in this report.   
 

10. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1. The Local Government Act 2000 requires Councils operating Executive 

Arrangements to include one or more Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees within their Constitution, which may be composed of any 
councillors who are not on the Executive Committee of the Council.   

 
10.2. Executive arrangements by a local authority must ensure that their 

overview and scrutiny committee has power (or their overview and 
scrutiny committees have power between them) to: 

a) to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in 
connection with the discharge of any functions which are the 
responsibility of the executive,  

b) to make reports or recommendations to the authority or the executive 
with respect to the discharge of any functions which are the 
responsibility of the executive,  

c) to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in 
connection with the discharge of any functions which are not the 
responsibility of the executive,  

d) to make reports or recommendations to the authority or the executive 
with respect to the discharge of any functions which are not the 
responsibility of the executive,  

e) to make reports or recommendations to the authority or the executive 
on matters which affect the authority’s area or the inhabitants of that 
area. 

 
11. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
11.1. Overview and Scrutiny links to Council Objective Two: Improvement and 

Council Objective Three: Sense of Community and Wellbeing.   
 
12. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

Page 9



 8 

 There are no direct risks associated with this report.  Any risks associated 
with topics selected by the JOSB will be addressed as part of the scrutiny 
exercise.   
 

13. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1  Overview and Scrutiny will contribute to improvement of service provision 

and community well being through the review of local council and 
community services.  It will also aid accountability of local services to 
service users, council tax payers and other local residents through elected 
Members as Overview and Scrutiny is led by elected councillors.   

 
14. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
14.1 Overview and Scrutiny will consider the equality and diversity implications of 

topics chosen for the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme.   
 
15. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
15.1 Value for money will be considered and encouraged through the Overview  

and Scrutiny process in the scrutiny review of local services.   
 
16. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Procurement Issues 
 

None 
 

Personnel Implications 
 

None 
 

Governance/Performance Management 
 
Effective governance process 
 

 
 

Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime 
and Disorder Act 1998 
 

None 

Policy 
 

None 
 

Environmental  
 

None 
 

 
17. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder No 
Chief Executive No 
Executive Director - Partnerships and Projects  No 
Executive Director - Services No 
Assistant Chief Executive No 
Head of Service Yes 
Head of Financial Services No 

Page 10



 9 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services Yes 

Head of Organisational Development & HR No 
Corporate Procurement Team No 

 
18. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

 All Wards 
 
19. APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 - Overview and Scrutiny Work Programming Schedule 
Appendix 2 – Bromsgrove District Council Vision, Values and Objectives 
Appendix 3 – The JOSB Work Programme 
 
20. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Assessing Bromsgroves Performance – Results of the Place Survey 2008/09 for 
Bromsgrove District Council and Partners. 
The Bromsgrove Sustainable Community Strategy 2007 – 2010  
The Council's Forward Plan and Supplementary List of Future Items 
The Worcestershire Local Area Agreement 2006-2009  
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   Michael Carr, Scrutiny Officer  
 
E Mail:  m.carr@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881407 
 

Page 11



 10 

Appendix 1 - Overview and Scrutiny Work Programming Schedule 
 
 
CMT    Tu 18th Aug 09 – invitation to suggest themes for O&S 
 

Collate and revise suggested themes from CMT and Members 
 

Agree work programming process and schedule with OB & SB Chairs 
 
JOSB  Tu 1st Sept 09 – consideration of the OB Work Programme 
 

Send invitation to all Members of O&S Work Shop by 25th September  
 
Scrutiny Board Tu 29th Sept – consideration of the SB Work Programme  
 

Ask CMT officers for any further suggestions by Fri 2nd Oct 09 
 

Prepare draft List of Topics for O&S 
 

Prepare framework for topic selection for O&S Work Shop 
 
O&S Work Shop Tu 6th Oct 09 – Discussion and election of topics 
 

Discuss and agree outcomes with OB & SB Chairs 
 

Revise List of Topics and O&S WPs – by Th 8th Oct 09 
 
CMT    13th Oct 09 – Final List of Topics and O&S WPs 
 

Feedback to CMT 
 
Overview Board Tu 3rd Nov 09 – Ratification of OB WP 
 
Scrutiny Board Tu 24th Nov 09 – Ratification of SB WP 
 
JOSB Tu 1st Dec 09 - Ratification of JOSB WP 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



 11 

Appendix 2 – Bromsgrove District Council Vision, Values and Objectives 
 

                    

P
age 13



 12 

Appendix 3 – JOSB Work Programme 
 

 
 

Joint Overview & Scrutiny Board 
 

 
WORK PROGRAMME 

 
1st December 2009  

 
 
This Work Programme consists of three sections: Items for future meetings (including updates); current Task Groups; and Task 
Group Reviews. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: To consider and agree the work programme. 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS (INCLUDING UPDATES) 
 

Subject Date of Consideration Other Information 

Recommendation Tracker 
- Permanent Item - 

Quarterly A quarterly report monitoring the implementation of JOSB 
recommendations.   

JOSB Work Programme 
2009-2010  

1st December 2009   
 

To agree the JOSB Work Programme 2009-2010.   

P
age 14



 13 

The Draft Budget Proposals 
Presentation on the Budget 
Process, recommended Capital 
Programme and Draft Base 
Budget for 2010 - 2011 

1st December 2009   
 
5th January 2010 
 

 

The Treasury Strategy 
To consider the investment 
portfolio of the Council. 

1st December 2009   
 

 

Scrutiny of Crime and Disorder 
To consider the statutory 
provisions for the scrutiny of 
crime and disorder. 

1st December 2009   
 
10th February 2010 
 
9th March 2010 

 

Councillor Calls for Action 
To consider the statutory 
provisions for the Councillor Calls 
for Actions and the process for 
this at Bromsgrove District 
Council.     

10th February 2010 
 

 

 
 

P
age 15



 14 

JOINT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY MEETING SCHEDULE AND WORK PROGRAMME 2009/10 
 
 
The role of the Joint Overview & Scrutiny Board (JOSB) is to discharge the following functions: 

~ Councillor Calls for Action,  
~ Crime and Disorder (it is The designated as the Crime and Disorder Committee in 
~ accordance with the Police and Justice Act 2006), 
~ To receive Petitions,  
~ Scrutiny of the Council Budget.  

 
1. ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS (INCLUDING UPDATES) 
 
1.1 Schedule of meetings and agenda items 
 
See Appendix 1 - Schedule of meetings and agenda items. 
 
1.2 Standing Items 
 
The following items will be considered at regular intervals, as indicated.   
 
Consideration of Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership (CDRP) Issues  - Standing item on each agenda 
Consideration of Petitions 
Consideration of Councilor Call for Action items 
 
 
 
 

P
age 16



 15 

Appendix 1 - Schedule of meetings and agenda items 
 

Date of Meeting Subject & Description Documentary Evidence 

Witnesses 
Department and 
Leader Officers 
Community 
Partners etc 

Decision Maker(s) / 
Decision Date Possible Outcomes 

 JOSB Work 
Programme 
To agree the JOSB 
Work Programme 2009-
2010.   

A report of the Head of 
Legal, Equalities and 
Democratic Services to 
agree the Work 
Programme for the JOSB 

Chairman of the 
JOSB – Cllr S. 

Colella 
 

Claire Felton – 
Head of Legal, 
Equalities and 
Democratic 
Services 

 
Sarah Sellers – 
Senior Soliciter  

 
Michael Carr – 
Scrutiny Officer 

  

JOSB 
1st December 2009  

Agreement of the JOSB 
Work Programme.   

Tuesday 
1st Dec 2009   
6.00 p.m. 
  

The Draft Budget 
Proposals 
Presentation on the 
Budget Process, 
recommended Capital 
Programme and Draft 
Base Budget for 2010 - 

Presentations to Scrutiny 
Steering Board on the 
budget process, draft 
Capital Programme  and 
base revenue budget. 

Cllr G Denaro – 
Cabinet Member 
 

Executive 
Director Services 

Tony Beirne 

Full Council 
24th February 2010.   

Recommendations on 
amendments to the 
Capital Programme and 
Draft Base Budget 
2010-2011.   

P
age 17



 16 

2011  
Head of Financial 

Services 
Jayne Pickering 
 

 The Treasury Strategy 
To consider the 
investment portfolio of 
the Council. 

 Cllr G Denaro – 
Cabinet Member 
 
Head of Financial 

Services 
Jayne Pickering 
 

Cllr G Denaro – Cabinet 
Member 
 
Cabinet March 2010 

 

 Scrutiny of Crime and 
Disorder 
To consider the statutory 
provisions for the 
scrutiny of crime and 
disorder. 

A report of the Head of 
Legal, Equalities and 
Democratic Services to 
consider the statutory 
provisions for the 
scrutiny of crime and 
disorder.   

Angela Heighway 
– Joint Head of 
Service Redditch 
& Bromsgrove 

 
Bev Houghton – 
Community 

Safety Manager 
(Redditch & 
Bromsgrove) 

 
Claire Felton – 
Head of Legal, 
Equalities and 
Democratic 
Services 

 
Sarah Sellers – 

 Agreement on the 
process for drawing up 
the draft procedures for 
the scrutiny of crime 
and disorder 
partnerships.   

P
age 18



 17 

Senior Solicitor  
 

Michael Carr – 
Scrutiny Officer 

 

Tuesday 
5th Jan 2010   
6.00 p.m. 

 

The Draft Budget 
Proposals 
Consideration by 
Scrutiny Steering Board 
of detailed budget for 
each area and proposed 
growth and budget 
reductions (if required). 

A report of the Head of 
Financial Services 

Cllr G Denaro – 
Cabinet Member 
 

Executive 
Director Services 

Tony Beirne 
 

Head of Financial 
Services 

Jayne Pickering 
 

Full Council 
24th February 2010. 

 
6th Jan. 2010 - 

Consideration by Cabinet 
of Revenue budget. 

 

      

Wednesday 
10th February 2010 

6.00pm 

Scrutiny of Crime and 
Disorder 

 

A report of the Head of 
Legal, Equalities and 
Democratic Services to 
consider and agree the 
draft process for the 
scrutiny of crime and 
disorder partnerships.   

Cllr M. J. A. 
Webb – Cabinet 
Member for 
Community and 
Customer 
Engagement and 
Community 
Safety.   
 
John Godwin 
CDRP Chairman 
and Dept. Head 
of Service, Street 

The Joint Overview and 
Scrutiny Board 

 
The Bromsgrove 
Community Safety 

Partnership 

 

P
age 19



 18 

Scene & 
Community, BDC 
 
Angela Heighway 
– Head of 
Strategy and 
Partnerships 
Redditch Borough 
Council (TBC) 
 
Beverly Houghton 
- Community 
Safety Manager 
(Redditch & 
Bromsgrove) TBC 
 

 Councillor Calls for 
Action 

A report of the Head of 
Legal, Equalities and 
Democratic Services to 
consider the statutory 
provisions for the 
Councillor Calls for 
Actions and the process 
for this at Bromsgrove 
District Council.     

 The Joint Overview and 
Scrutiny Board 

 

 

Tuesday 
9th March 2010 

6.00pm 

Scrutiny of Crime and 
Disorder  

A report of the Head of 
Strategy and 
Partnerships to consider 
the key issues for crime 
and disorder scrutiny in 
Bromsgrove, the key 
targets and performance 

Cllr M. J. A. 
Webb – Cabinet 
Member for 
Community and 
Customer 
Engagement and 
Community 

  

P
age 20



 19 

indicators for the 
Bromsgrove Community 
Safety Partnership.   

Safety.   
 
John Godwin 
CDRP Chairman 
and Dept. Head 
of Service, Street 
Scene & 
Community, BDC 
 
Cllr Sheila Blagg - 
West Mercia 
Police Authority 
TBC 
 
Angela Heighway 
– Head of 
Strategy and 
Partnerships 
Redditch Borough 
Council (TBC) 
 
Beverly Houghton 
- Community 
Safety Manager 
(Redditch & 
Bromsgrove) TBC 
 
Chris Santoriello-
Smith - Senior 
Neighbourhood 
Warden, BDC 
TBC 
 
Emily Humphreys 
- Bromsgrove 
Community 

P
age 21



 20 

Safety 
Partnership TBC 
 
Insp Dave Shaw- 
West Mercia 
Police TBC 

 

P
age 22



 21 

Appendix 2a - Current JOSB Task Groups 
 

Current Task Groups Date Report Due Other Information 

NONE   

 
Appendix 2b - JOSB Task Group Reviews 
 

Task Group Date of Review 
(when Task Group is due to reconvene) 

NONE  

 

P
age 23



 22 

 

P
age 24



  
 

 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW BOARD  
 

1ST DECEMBER 2009 
 

UPDATE OF MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2010/11-2012/13 
 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Councillor Geoff Denaro 
Responsible Head of Service Jayne Pickering – Head of Financial 

Services 
 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1. To provide information to enable Members  to review the current position 

on the Medium Term Financial Plan 2010/11 – 2012/13 and to make 
recommendations to Cabinet in relation to this budget. 

 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1. It is recommended that the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Board: 
 
2.1.1 Consider the pressures as identified in Appendix A and recommend to 

Executive Cabinet any changes in priority categorisation.  
 
2.1.2 Consider the unavoidable pressures identified at Appendix B and 

recommend any changes to Executive Cabinet 
 
2.1.3 consider the savings identified at Appendix C 
 
2.1.4 consider the new bids for the Capital Programme as included at 

Appendix D  and recommend any changes in scheme priority to 
Executive Cabinet. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1. The Council on 7th January 2009 approved a medium term financial plan 

that included the Revenue and Capital budget requirements for 2009/10 -
2011/12.. 

 
3.2. On 7th October 2009 the Executive Cabinet approved the budget process 

and timetable to be followed to review the medium term financial plan for 
2010/11 – 2012/13. 

 
3.3. As part of the approved budget process Executive Cabinet proposed a 

revised set of 6 priorities against the Council objectives for focus of 
resources which were approved by Council on 16th September 2009. 
These were: 

Agenda Item 5

Page 25



  
 

 
1. Economic Development 
2. Town Centre 
3. Value for Money 
4. One Community 
5. Housing 
6. Climate Change 

 
3.4. The approved objectives and priorities have been used to drive the 

budget process as follows: 
 

• Budget pressures have only been proposed to members by senior 
management if they have been identified as unavoidable / or they 
are fundamental in achieving the Council’s priorities. 

• Financial savings have been focused on more efficient working 
practices and alternative methods of service delivery  

• Disinvesting in non priority areas. 

• Capital Projects to be proposed only if they meet the priorities of 
the Council  

3.5 The current financial plan covers a period of 3 years. The plan is 
developed in conjunction with treasury management and ICT strategies 
to deliver a coordinated approach to the delivery of the Councils 
priorities. 

4 Base budget information 
 
4.1  The current budget book that was sent to all members in February 2009 

includes the Base budget for 2010/11 and 2011/12. These budgets are 
been updated for this financial plan together with the proposed plans for 
2012/13. 

 
4.2 The base budget for 2010/11-2011/12 included a number of approved 

changes to the funding of services from the financial position of 2008/09.  
These included: 

 
• Savings in relation to delivering services by alternative methods. 

(£523k). This includes the savings relating to the shared 
management team. 

• Council Tax level to increase at 4.45%  per annum  
• Savings from co-mingle recycling service (£200k) 

 
 
4.3 The pay structure for 2010/11 includes the impact of the Job Evaluation 

process during February 2008. In addition there is an assumption for a 
pay award of 1% included in the current projections which may be 
reduced depending on the shortfall in the budget requirement. In addition 
a number of Job Evaluation appeals are currently being undertaken and 
a revised salary estimate will be produced once the final outcomes have 
been assessed.  Therefore the current base budget will be amended for 

Page 26



  
 

the final budget setting to reflect the revised JE and pay award outcomes 
and assumptions. Based on this initial information the net expenditure is:  

 
• Base Budget for 2010/11 £12.482m 

• Base Budget for 2011/12 £12.860m 

• Base Budget for 2012/13    £13.433m 

4.4 Within this the following assumptions have been made for the main 
elements of the budget: 

 
Pay awards    1% per annum (Note 1) 
Utility costs   5.0% per annum  
Business rates   5.00% per annum 
Other costs        2.5% per annum 
Government Grants Based on confirmed settlement for 

2010/11 and 5% reduction for 2011/12 
& 2012/13 (Note 4) 

Investment interest      1.75%/2.75%% per annum (Note 2) 
Pension fund increase     Note 3 
Vacancy Management     4.0% 
Council Tax Base increase  0.2% - 0.5% 

  

 Notes: 

1. For the purposes of these initial projections it has been assumed that 
a pay award of 1% will be given in 2010/11. Further discussions will 
be held in relation to future years pay award assumptions and 
factored into 2011/12 & 12/13 at the final budget meeting in 2010.  

2. Investment interest for 2010/11-2012/13has been included at 
0.75%/2.%. This is based on the most recent information obtained 
from our treasury advisors. 

3. Following the presentation of the 2007 Pension Fund Valuation the 
actuaries have assessed that in order to move toward a fully funded 
pension scheme the rate needs to increase in incremental steps to a 
maximum of 20.8% by 2013/14. The applicable rate for 2010/11 is 
19%. The rate payable from 2011/12 will be further revised following 
the next valuation of the Pension Fund on 31 March 2010. 

4. There has been a confirmed grant settlement for 2010/11. The 
current assumption is that there will be a real terms decrease in grant 
from 2011/12 of 5% per annum. This impact has been built into the 
future projections. 

4.5 Savings of 4% each year on the pay bill have been assumed through 
vacancy management. These savings will also be used to cover the 
costs of recruitment. 

 

Page 27



  
 

4.6 The Job Evaluation Scheme was implemented in May 2009. The 
protection period is for 2 years and will finish in May 2011. The impact of 
the appeals has not been included in this update as the final outcomes 
have yet to be established. 

 
5 Budget Pressures 
 
5.1 Officers have identified a number of budget pressures that have either 

been deemed “unavoidable” or “high” priority. Unavoidable includes the 
ongoing effects of pressures identified during 2009/10 together with any 
corrections in the budget. A high priority is something that is in direct 
pursuit of the Council’s priorities. Each unavoidable and high pressure 
has a specific “funding request” schedule completed which reflects how 
the funding required meets the Council objectives. The current 
unavoidable pressures are detailed in Appendix A and high pressures in 
Appendix B 

 
5.2 A number of other budget pressures have been identified but these have 

been categorised as medium and low following discussions with officers 
and do not form part of the current financial projections. These are  also 
included within Appendix B. 

 
5.3 Members are asked to consider any changes to the unavoidable costs 

and priority of pressures identified.  
 
6. Budget reductions / additional income  
 
6.1 The savings have been proposed by Corporate Management Team who 

have sought to identify areas which could demonstrate: 
• Additional income generation  
• Reduction to costs with no impact on service delivery  
• Alternative methods of service delivery / more efficient working 

practices / shared / collaborative working to realise savings 
• Reduction in cost of services which do not directly impact on 

the Councils priorities 
 
6.2 The savings/ additional income details are shown in Appendix C.   
 
6.3. As part of the review of the Financial Plan officers have included 

proposals to generate efficiency savings through joint working or 
alternative ways of providing our services over the next 3 years. Included 
in the 2010/11 budget as approved in January 2009 is a target of £523k 
saving with a further £100k in 2011/12.   

 
6.4. Included in Appendix A is an increase of £148k to the original savings 

target of £523k.  This is due to the additional savings realised from 
CCTV / Lifeline, ICT and the potential savings that could be generated by 
changing the method of service delivery arrangements at the Dolphin 
Centre.  

 
 
 

Page 28



  
 

 
7. Government Grant 
 
7.1 The Council had received the formal settlement for 2010/11. The 

financial increase in the grant is shown below: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
7.2 Following discussions with other authorities and in consideration of the 

national economic climate it is assumed that there will be a cash 
reduction in the Grant awarded to Local Authorities from 2011/12. An 
estimate of 5% for each year has been included in the current position.  

 
7.3 The impact of this reduction from 2011/12 is as follows  

 
 
 
9. Investment Interest 
 
9.1 An element within the overall medium term financial plan is Investment 

Interest. Members will be aware that due to the current financial climate 
a decision has been taken to hold investments in very low risk 
organisations which offer a lower rate of return than those institutions 
which may be considered as slightly higher risk. The projections from our 
treasury advisors are less optimistic than previously estimated in the 
increases over the 3 year period. The projections contained within this 
report include investment increases of 0/75% to 2% by 2012/13. 

 
9.2 The quarterly integrated finance and performance report will report the 

position on the investments generated by the Council and detail any 
changes as a result of changes to the base rate. 

 
 
10. Capital Programme 
 
10.1 As part of the Medium Term Financial Plan and Capital Strategy 

members approved a number of criteria in relation to the Capital 
Programme including: 

 

 2009/10 
£’000 

2010/11 
£’000 

Increase 
£ (%) 

 
Formula Grant (FG) 

 
4,946 

 

 
5,047 

 
2% 

  
 

2011/12 
£’000 

Value of 
decrease 

(5%) 
£’000 

 
 

2012/13 
£’000 

Value of 
decrease 

(5%) 
£’000 

Total 
Value of 

5% 
reduction 

£’000  
 
Formula Grant (FG) 
 

 
4,795 

 
252 

 
4,555 

 
240 

 
492 

Page 29



  
 

• The capital programme is limited to £1m per annum funded from the 
Council’s own resources (in order to maximise the investment 
interest); 

 
• Cabinet give consideration to fund housing grants over and above the 

£1m. 
 
10.2 Cabinet also approved the capital investment criteria (as part of the 

Capital Strategy) that a scheme should satisfy for inclusion in the capital 
budget as follows: 

 
• Enable delivery of the Councils priorities 
• Maintain existing assets to standards suitable for service delivery.  
• Improve and acquire assets to meet service and customer needs. 
• Improve the stewardship of assets; spend to save (innovative 

schemes that will secure the Council a better rate of return than 
the investment interest earned); to reduce longer-term problems 
and liabilities. 

• Satisfy legal obligations of the Council (e.g. health and safety 
requirements, and compliance with the disability discrimination 
legislation).  

• Develop community assets in areas of need. 
• Maximise the use of other funds to encourage investment in 

specific areas such as energy efficiency, economic development 
and infrastructure developments (using funds derived from 
Section 106 agreements with developers). 

• Maximise the benefits of partnership working. 
 

10.3  The Capital Programme for 2010/11 and 2011/12 was approved as part 
of the 3 year Financial Plan for 2009/10. The projects approved have 
been reviewed with the aim to reduce funding requirements whilst still 
maintaining service delivery. In addition the consideration of the service 
Business Plans has resulted in new schemes being proposed for 
2010/11 – 2012/13 to meet the priorities of the Council together with the 
funding associated with the previously agreed replacement plan for fleet 
vehicles and plant. The proposed new bids for the Capital Programme 
are attached at Appendix D for consideration.  

 
10.4 If Members approve the level of Capital Spend to 2012/13 the effect on 

capital receipts will be as follows based on expected expenditure in 
2008/09: 

 
 

 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Opening Balance 2,234 1,302 102 
Used in Year -1,332 -1,600 -90 
Received in year 400 400 90 
Closing Balance 1,302 102 102 

 

Page 30



  
 

The figures in the above table include general capital receipts for funding 
of projects across the District. In addition an estimate of capital receipts 
has been made of £100k per annum in relation to any sales of assets 
and £300k government grant that the Council may receive during the 
financial plan period.  
 

10.5 The impact of borrowing for assets will affect the revenue account. A 
review has been undertaken based on the projected capital programme 
to ensure sufficient funds are set aside to provide a repairs and 
replacement fund for the future.  

 
10.6 If all Capital Programme funding requests are approved there is a 

projected £102k balance remaining in the capital receipts fund for 
2012/13. This will limit the Councils ability to fund major projects in the 
future and it is assumed that the Council will be in a position of borrowing 
over the medium term if new projects are identified. 

 
 
11. Overall Position 
 
11.1 Based on the assumptions and the proposed pressures (high only) and 

savings the current position for each of the three years is as follows: 
 

 2010/11 
£’000 

2011/12 
£’000 

2012/13 
£’000 

Base cost of General Fund 
Services 12,482 12,860 13,433 
Pressures – High bids & 
unavoidables 743 694 672 
Savings -807 -501 -550 
Investment Income -67 -93 -85 
Recharge to capital programme -136 -136 -136 
Net operating expenditure 12,215 12,824 13,334 
Area Based Grant -23 -22 -22 
Surplus from Collection Fund -51   
Government Grant -5,047 -4,795 -4,555 
Assumed Council Tax @ 2.5% 
(2010/11-2011/12 & 4.45% 
2012/13) -7,023 -7,234 -7,594 
Overall Shortfall 71 773 1,163 

 
11.2 The Council is to set a balanced budget for 2010/11-2012/13 and 

therefore will have to approve further savings, increase income or reduce 
high pressures for the 3 year period. Any additional spending, over and 
above the pressures identified above, would also need to be funded by 
additional savings. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



  
 

12  Balances 
 
12.1    The current projected level of balances at 31.03.10 is £1.547m assuming 

all costs approved are spent.  It is anticipated that a proportion of the 
balances will be utilised to meet the severance costs associated with the 
joint management structure. An update to the balances position will be 
reported to Members as part of the ongoing budget process. 

 
 
13 Fees and charges 
 
13.1 The financial plan 2010/11-2012/13 currently assumes a 2.5% increase 

in all income.  A detailed review of income generated and comparison 
with other organisations in currently being undertaken to ensure the 
Council maximises its available income streams. 

 
14 Financial Implications 
 
14.1 None other than those included in the report. 
  
15 Legal Implications 
 
15.1 None as a direct result of the draft budget. Legal and Human resource 

issues will be addressed during any discussions in relation to restructures 
and redundancies. 
 

 
16. Corporate Objectives 
 
16.1 The delivery of a balanced budget demonstrates the Councils ability to 

fund objectives and priorities within a reasonable level of increase to 
residents. 

 
17. Risk Management 
 

17.1 The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 

17.2 Non compliance with the statutory deadlines to set a balanced budget. 

17.3 No formal consultation undertaken with the public 

17.4 Poor use of resources scoring in relation to consideration of the budget 

17.5 These risks are being managed as follows: 

17.6 Non compliance with statutory deadlines 

Risk Register: Financial Services  
Key Objective Ref.: 6 
Key Objective: Effective and Efficient Accountancy Service 

17.7 No formal consultation undertaken with the public 

Page 32



  
 

Risk Register: Financial Services  
Key Objective Ref.: 6 
Key Objective: Effective and Efficient Accountancy Service 

17.8 Poor use of resources scoring in relation to consideration of the budget 

Risk Register: Financial Services  
Key Objective Ref.: 6 
Key Objective: Effective and Efficient Accountancy Service 

17.9 Key actions and controls to manage these risks include: 

• Detailed timetable in place to manage the budget process with 
departments and accountancy support 

• Allocation of qualified and professional  staff to focus on budget 
setting accounts 

• Regular updates at Corporate Management Team in relation to 
budget processes 

• Formal consultation on the budget with the Budget Jury  

• Formal consultation in place with unions and individual employees 

• Formal consultation with customer panel via SNAP in place 

 
18. Customer Implications 
 
18.1 The setting of the budget against the Corporate Priorities will ensure that 

the Council demonstrates to the customer that we have aligned our 
resources to the key services required.  

 
19. Other Implications 
 

  
Procurement Issues N/A 
 
Governance/Performance Management 
N/A 
Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 - N/A 
Policy - N/A 
Environmental -N/A 
Equalities and Diversity -N/A 

 
 
 
20. Others Consulted on the report 
 
  

Portfolio Holder 
 

Yes 

Chief Executive Yes 

Page 33



  
 

 
Corporate Director (Services)  
 

Yes 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Financial Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 
 

Yes 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

Yes 

 
21 APPENDICES 
 
Appendix A – High, Medium and Low Pressures  
Appendix B – Unavoidable pressures 
Appendix C – Savings / additional income generated 
Appendix D – Capital Programme – proposed  
 
22 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Budget timetable 
Detailed budget working papers 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   Jayne Pickering  
E Mail:  j.pickering@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881207 

Page 34



N
E

W
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
ID

S
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
20

10
/1

1 
   

£'
00

0
20

11
/1

2 
   

£'
00

0
20

12
/1

3 
   

£'
00

0
H

/M
/L

C
o

m
m

en
ta

ry
  (

 li
n

k 
to

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 e
tc

) 

F
un

di
ng

 fo
r 

LS
P

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
M

M
S

 &
 P

O
LI

C
Y

25
25

25
H

T
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 fu
nd

in
g 

to
 th

e 
LS

P
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 C

ou
nc

il 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 in
 p

rio
rit

y 
ar

ea
s 

A
ge

 W
el

l S
ch

em
e

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

10
20

20
H

T
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

n 
A

ge
 W

el
l S

ch
em

e 
fo

r 
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 w

ou
ld

 li
nk

 d
ire

ct
ly

 to
 th

e 
ne

w
 c

or
po

ra
te

 
pr

io
rit

y 
O

ne
 C

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
, b

ei
ng

 fo
cu

ss
ed

 o
n 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 r

an
ge

 o
f o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

ol
de

r 
pe

op
le

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
sm

ok
in

g 
ce

ss
at

io
n 

an
d 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
ct

iv
ity

. 

D
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
 H

ou
si

ng
 P

ay
m

en
t

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

5
H

T
o 

fu
nd

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
D

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

 H
ou

si
ng

 P
ay

m
en

ts
 m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
- 

Li
nk

 to
  S

en
se

 o
f 

C
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 C

us
to

m
er

 S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
U

pg
ra

de
 to

 c
or

po
ra

te
 r

es
ili

en
t l

in
k 

be
tw

ee
n 

R
B

C
 &

 
B

D
C

E
-G

O
V

 A
N

D
 C

U
S

T
O

M
E

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

20
15

15
H

T
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

lin
k 

( 
re

si
lie

nc
e)

 b
et

w
ee

n 
R

B
C

 &
 B

D
C

 to
 a

llo
w

 fo
r 

ad
di

tio
na

l s
ha

re
d 

se
rv

ic
es

M
os

ai
c

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
M

M
S

 &
 P

O
LI

C
Y

8
H

T
o 

pu
rc

ha
se

 M
os

ai
c 

fo
r 

1 
ye

ar
 to

 e
na

bl
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
cu

st
om

er
s 

an
d 

to
 ta

rg
et

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 th
es

e 
cu

st
om

er
s

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t  

- 
flo

od
in

g
P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 &

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

15
H

T
o 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f a
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
flo

od
in

g 
an

d 
w

at
er

co
ur

se
 m

an
ag

em
en

t
A

rt
rix

 H
ol

di
ng

 T
ru

st
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
1

1
1

M
T

o 
be

 fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 b
ud

ge
ts

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

- 
op

er
at

io
na

l b
ud

ge
t 

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

10
10

10
M

T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
bu

dg
et

 fo
r 

th
e 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 o

ffi
ce

r 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
an

d 
m

ee
t s

ta
tu

to
ry

 ta
rg

et
s

R
ou

nd
ab

ou
t l

an
ds

ca
pe

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

22
M

T
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 o

f r
ou

nd
ab

ou
ts

 a
nd

 im
ag

e 
of

 B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

, e
na

bl
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

sp
on

so
rs

hi
p 

of
 th

e 
ro

un
da

bo
ut

s.
  P

ud
dl

ew
ha

rf
 -

 P
la

nt
 2

00
0 

cr
oc

us
 a

ro
un

d 
pe

rim
et

er
 5

0 
no

 o
rn

am
en

ta
l  

gr
as

se
s 

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

bo
rd

er
 £

67
0.

00
  B

un
ts

fo
rd

 : 
 P

la
nt

 3
00

0 
C

ro
cu

s
W

ra
p 

ar
ou

nd
 to

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
 e

ve
nt

s 
in

 D
is

tr
ic

t
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 C
O

M
M

S
 &

 P
O

LI
C

Y
6

6
6

M
T

o 
hi

gh
lg

ht
 e

ve
nt

s 
ar

ou
nd

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t

W
ra

p 
ar

ou
nd

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 C
O

M
M

S
 &

 P
O

LI
C

Y
6

M
O

ne
 o

ff 
co

st
 fo

r 
w

ra
p 

ar
ou

nd
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 c
om

m
un

ity
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
H

R
21

- 
C

H
R

IS
 2

1 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
H

R
 &

 O
D

7
7

7
M

T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

an
 e

nh
an

ce
m

en
t t

o 
C

H
R

IS
21

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 a

nd
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 H
R

 a
nd

 p
ay

ro
ll 

sy
st

em

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

E
-G

O
V

 A
N

D
 C

U
S

T
O

M
E

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

10
10

10
M

T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

su
ffi

ci
en

t f
un

ds
 to

 e
na

bl
e 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

st
or

ag
e/

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 d
is

po
sa

l a
rr

an
gm

en
ts

M
ic

ro
so

ft 
S

W
 L

ic
en

se
E

-G
O

V
 A

N
D

 C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
25

25
25

M
T

o 
en

ab
le

 th
e 

up
gr

ad
e 

of
 M

S
 o

ffi
ce

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 E
-f

or
m

s 
fo

r 
B

en
ef

its
F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
16

4
4

M
T

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
el

ec
tr

on
ic

 fo
rm

s 
fo

r 
be

ne
fit

 c
la

im
s 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
ac

ce
ss

 2
4/

7 
an

d 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f m
an

ua
l 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s
T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e 

P
ro

sp
ec

tu
s

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
M

M
S

 &
 P

O
LI

C
Y

15
M

T
o 

fu
nd

 a
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 p

ro
sp

ec
tu

s 
to

 a
ttr

ac
t n

ew
 r

et
ai

l o
ffe

r 
to

 th
e 

to
w

n
Y

ou
ng

 A
dv

is
or

s
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 C
O

M
M

S
 &

 P
O

LI
C

Y
4

M
T

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

yo
ut

h 
of

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
G

ra
nt

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 &
 E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
50

50
M

T
o 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
ho

m
el

es
s 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
gr

an
ts

 -
 th

is
 b

id
 o

n 
ba

si
s 

of
 fu

nd
in

g 
be

in
g 

w
ith

dr
aw

n
E

ne
rg

y 
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 &
 E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
10

M
T

o 
en

ab
le

 fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r 

th
e 

ho
m

e 
in

su
la

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
t

In
te

r-
ge

ne
ra

tio
na

l O
ffi

ce
r 

(p
os

t o
nl

y 
no

 o
p'

s 
bu

dg
et

)
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
24

24
25

L

A
n 

in
te

r-
ge

ne
ra

tio
na

l o
ffi

ce
r 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 fo
cu

s 
on

 a
re

as
 o

f w
or

k 
ac

ro
ss

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 te
am

s 
w

ith
in

 
st

re
et

 s
ce

ne
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
ne

w
 c

or
po

ra
te

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
of

 o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e,
 

st
ro

ng
er

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 b
ei

ng
 h

ea
lth

y 
. T

he
 p

os
t w

ill
 e

na
bl

e 
an

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

to
 

en
co

m
pa

ss
 y

ou
th

 w
or

k,
 h

ea
lth

 p
rio

rit
ie

s,
 a

rt
s,

 s
po

rt
s,

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
.  

  

E
as

te
r 

E
gg

 H
un

t
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
4

4
4

L

A
s 

w
el

l a
s 

m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il,

 th
is

 w
ou

ld
 a

dd
 a

 n
ew

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 e

ve
nt

s 
ta

ki
ng

 p
la

ce
 a

t a
 

tim
e 

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 w

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 s

ho
rt

fa
ll 

of
 lo

ca
l e

ve
nt

s/
ac

tiv
iti

es
. W

e 
w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
lo

ok
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
es

e 
at

 
si

m
ila

r 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 to

 th
at

 o
f S

tr
ee

t T
he

at
re

 -
 B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e,

 W
yt

ha
ll,

 R
ub

er
y 

an
d 

H
ag

le
y.

 o
f 

th
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t -

 C
om

m
un

ity
 E

ng
ag

m
en

t/C
om

m
un

ity
 E

ve
nt

s/
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n/

C
us

to
m

er
 S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

- 
E

co
no

m
ic

  D
ev

el
eo

pm
en

t -
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e

B
an

d 
C

on
te

st
/B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
's

 G
ot

 T
al

en
t?

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

8
10

12
L

A
n 

id
ea

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

B
rit

ai
n'

s 
G

ot
 T

al
en

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
su

gg
es

te
d 

m
an

y 
tim

es
 a

nd
 th

is
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
fa

nt
as

tic
 

op
po

rt
ui

nt
y 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
te

en
ag

er
s 

(a
n 

au
di

en
ce

 w
e 

do
n'

t c
ur

re
nl

ty
 d

o 
gr

ea
t d

ea
l f

or
) 

T
he

 id
ea

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
se

t 
ar

ou
nd

 a
n 

ev
en

t a
t W

as
el

ey
 P

ar
k 

(N
o 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
s 

to
 w

or
ry

 a
bo

ut
) 

an
d 

an
ot

he
r 

in
 S

an
de

rs
 P

ar
k 

or
 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

G
ro

un
d.

  W
e 

w
ou

ld
 s

el
ec

t t
op

 2
 b

an
ds

/p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

s 
to

 a
pp

ea
r 

at
 a

 fi
na

le
 a

t t
he

 A
R

tr
ix

. 
T

he
se

 w
ou

ld
 a

ga
in

 li
nk

 to
 In

cr
ea

se
 in

 b
ot

h 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 e
ve

nt
s 

an
d 

pe
op

le
 a

tte
dn

in
g 

E
ve

nt
s.

In
re

as
e 

B
an

ds
ta

nd
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
to

 o
th

er
 a

re
as

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

5
8

10
L

D
ur

in
g 

su
m

m
er

 2
00

9 
w

e 
ha

ve
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
cu

st
om

er
 s

ur
ve

ys
 in

 th
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

: H
ag

le
y,

 W
yt

ha
ll 

an
d 

R
ub

er
y 

an
d 

ha
ve

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
po

si
tiv

e 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
A

rt
s 

ba
se

d 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 fo

r 
cc

hi
ld

re
n,

 fa
m

ili
es

 a
nd

 o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e.
 E

g:
 D

ru
m

m
in

g,
 C

lo
w

ns
, A

rt
 W

or
ks

ho
ps

, M
us

ic
 C

on
ce

rt
s,

 B
ra

ss
 

B
an

ds
 e

tc
.. 

si
m

ila
r 

to
 th

os
e 

al
re

ad
y 

re
ce

iv
ed

 in
 S

an
de

rs
 P

A
rk

 B
an

ds
ta

nd
 P

rg
ra

m
m

e.
  W

e 
w

ou
ld

 d
el

iv
er

 
a 

si
m

ila
r 

P
rg

ra
m

m
e 

to
  t

he
se

 th
re

e 
ar

ea
s 

an
d 

gr
ow

 th
e 

ev
en

t e
ac

h 
ye

ar
. T

he
se

 w
ou

ld
 li

nk
 to

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t -
 C

om
m

un
ity

 E
ng

ag
m

en
t/C

om
m

un
ity

 E
ve

nt
s/

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n/
C

us
to

m
er

 S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
- 

E
co

no
m

ic
  D

ev
el

eo
pm

en
t -

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e
C

Y
P

 m
ag

az
in

e/
m

ap
pi

ng
 a

nd
 p

lo
tti

ng
 o

f a
ct

iv
iti

es
/s

es
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
5

5
5

L
M

ar
ke

tin
g/

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t

R
ec

yc
lin

g 
in

 S
ch

oo
ls

 P
ro

je
ct

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

2
2

3
L

S
:\2

01
0-

11
 F

in
an

ci
al

 Y
ea

r\
R

ev
en

ue
 B

ud
ge

ts
 1

0-
11

\B
ud

ge
t R

ep
or

ts
\S

cr
ut

in
y 

B
ud

ge
t A

pp
en

ds
 0

11
20

9A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

20
/1

1/
20

09

Page 35



N
E

W
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
ID

S
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
20

10
/1

1 
   

£'
00

0
20

11
/1

2 
   

£'
00

0
20

12
/1

3 
   

£'
00

0
H

/M
/L

C
o

m
m

en
ta

ry
  (

 li
n

k 
to

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 e
tc

) 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e 

W
ar

de
ns

 (
lin

ke
d 

to
 n

ig
ht

 ti
m

e 
ec

on
om

y)
 

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

56
56

56
L

T
o 

ex
te

nd
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 W

ar
de

n 
te

am
 fr

om
 3

 to
 5

. T
he

 e
xt

ra
 tw

o 
w

ar
de

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
br

an
de

d 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 w

ar
de

ns
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

di
ca

te
d 

to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
S

t J
oh

ns
 W

ar
d 

w
ith

 s
pe

ci
al

 e
m

ph
ai

s 
on

 th
e 

T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e 
an

d 
S

an
de

rs
 P

ar
k.

  A
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l t
w

o 
w

ar
de

ns
 fo

r 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

sa
fe

ty
 te

am
 to

 h
av

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 in

 th
es

e 
tw

o 
ho

ts
po

ts
 m

os
t T

hu
rs

da
y,

 F
rid

ay
 a

nd
 S

at
ur

da
y 

ev
en

in
g 

as
 

w
el

l a
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
hi

gh
 v

is
ib

ili
ty

 p
re

se
nc

e 
du

rin
g 

so
m

e 
of

 th
e 

da
yt

im
e 

pe
rio

ds
 to

 e
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 
th

at
 c

om
e 

in
to

 th
e 

to
w

n.
  T

he
 m

ai
n 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

es
e 

w
ar

de
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 a
s 

a 
sa

fe
 p

la
ce

 to
 b

e,
 a

nd
 in

cr
ea

se
 c

us
to

m
er

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l i
n 

de
al

in
g 

w
ith

 a
sb

 a
nd

 d
is

or
de

r.
 

T
he

 W
ar

de
ns

 a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 o
ffe

r 
a 

pe
rs

on
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 o
t p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 li

ve
, w

or
k 

an
d 

vi
si

t t
he

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 in
 tu

rn
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

ei
r 

cu
st

om
er

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e.

  W
ar

de
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

a 
vi

si
bl

e 
pr

es
ce

nc
e 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 d
is

pl
ay

in
g 

a 
ze

ro
 to

le
re

na
ce

 to
w

ar
ds

 a
nt

i-s
oc

ia
l b

eh
av

io
ur

 a
nd

 d
is

or
de

r.
  W

ar
de

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 w
or

k 
in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 C
C

T
V

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
, L

oc
al

 p
ol

ic
in

g 
te

am
s 

an
d 

ab
le

 to
 li

as
e 

cl
os

el
y 

w
ith

 
W

ha
ts

 o
n 

G
ui

de
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
5

5
5

L
T

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

W
ha

ts
 o

n 
gu

id
e 

to
 m

ar
ke

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t

C
le

an
in

g 
M

ac
hi

ne
 fo

r 
to

ile
ts

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

1
L

O
ffi

ce
r 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

17
17

17
L

M
ic

ro
so

ft 
P

ro
je

ct
E

-G
O

V
 A

N
D

 C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
5

L
T

o 
en

ab
le

 M
ic

ro
so

ft 
 P

ro
je

ct
  t

o 
be

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

ils
 a

nd
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 T

og
et

he
r 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
M

M
S

 &
 P

O
LI

C
Y

38
38

38
L

T
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

co
ve

ra
ge

 o
f T

og
et

he
r 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 b
y 

us
in

g 
R

oy
al

 M
ai

l f
or

 d
ire

ct
 p

os
ta

ge
O

ld
er

 P
er

so
ns

 D
ire

ct
or

y 
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 C
O

M
M

S
 &

 P
O

LI
C

Y
8

L
O

ne
 o

ff 
co

st
 o

f o
ld

er
 p

er
so

ns
 d

ire
ct

or
y 

Li
fe

 C
ha

nn
el

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
M

M
S

 &
 P

O
LI

C
Y

5
L

T
o 

lin
k 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 th
e 

te
le

vi
si

on
 n

et
w

or
k 

ce
le

br
at

in
g 

lif
e 

an
d 

he
al

th
H

is
to

ric
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

 G
ra

nt
P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 &

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

20
20

20
L

T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

gr
an

ts
 fo

r 
ow

ne
rs

 to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 e
ss

en
tia

l r
ep

ai
rs

 o
n 

lis
te

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
H

ea
lth

 &
 S

af
et

y 
T

ra
in

in
g

H
R

 &
 O

D
33

33
33

L
T

o 
be

 fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 C

or
po

ra
te

 T
ra

in
in

g 
bu

dg
et

 ?
M

S
 O

ffi
ce

 T
ra

in
in

g 
- 

pr
oj

ec
t

H
R

 &
 O

D
10

10
10

L
T

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r 
of

fic
er

s 
in

 th
e 

m
ic

ro
so

ft 
of

fic
e 

pr
oj

ec
t s

of
tw

ar
e

T
O

T
A

L
 N

E
W

 B
ID

S
 -

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
46

1
40

5
41

1

S
:\2

01
0-

11
 F

in
an

ci
al

 Y
ea

r\
R

ev
en

ue
 B

ud
ge

ts
 1

0-
11

\B
ud

ge
t R

ep
or

ts
\S

cr
ut

in
y 

B
ud

ge
t A

pp
en

ds
 0

11
20

9A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

20
/1

1/
20

09

Page 36



U
N

A
V

O
ID

A
B

L
E

 
P

R
E

S
S

U
R

E
S

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 D

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
C

o
m

m
en

ta
ry

  (
 li

n
k 

to
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

es
 e

tc
) 

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

C
on

ce
ss

io
na

ry
 T

ra
ve

l C
la

im
s

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

50
50

50
O

rig
in

al
 B

ud
ge

t u
nd

er
es

tim
at

ed
 

60
+ 

sw
im

m
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
12

T
o 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
le

ve
l o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 s

up
po

rt
 to

 th
e 

ov
er

 6
0s

 s
w

im
m

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e

B
al

lo
t B

ox
es

LE
G

A
L,

 E
Q

U
A

LI
T

IE
S

 &
 D

E
M

O
C

R
A

T
IC

12
H

ea
lth

 &
 S

af
et

y 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t -
 to

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
ne

w
 b

al
lo

t b
ox

es
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

se
cu

rit
y 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 o

f c
us

to
m

er
s 

an
d 

st
af

f

M
us

eu
m

 c
os

ts
 u

nt
il 

tr
an

sf
er

 (
ov

er
 a

nd
 a

bo
ve

 
20

K
)

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

4
4

B
ud

ge
t t

o 
m

et
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

co
st

 o
f k

ee
pi

ng
 th

e 
m

us
eu

m
 in

 u
da

bl
e 

co
nd

iti
on

 
bu

t c
lo

se
d.

 E
xp

ec
t s

itu
at

io
n 

to
 b

e 
re

so
lv

ed
 b

y 
12

/1
3 

re
m

ov
in

g 
th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
fu

nd
in

g.
H

ea
lth

 &
 S

af
et

y 
In

sp
ec

tio
ns

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

8
4

4
H

&
S

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 c

em
et

er
y 

w
al

l r
ep

ai
rs

 &
 M

em
or

ia
l

D
C

 C
ar

 P
ar

ki
ng

 r
ef

un
ds

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

20
20

20
T

o 
m

ee
t c

os
ts

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
fu

nd
s 

gi
ve

n 
to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 fo

r 
us

e 
of

 th
e 

ca
r 

pa
rk

 a
t t

he
 D

ol
ph

in
 C

en
tr

e

M
em

be
rs

 A
llo

w
an

ce
s

LE
G

A
L,

 E
Q

U
A

LI
T

IE
S

 &
 D

E
M

O
C

R
A

T
IC

5
5

5
T

o 
m

ee
t t

he
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

le
ve

l o
f a

pp
ro

ve
d 

sp
en

d 
on

 m
em

be
rs

 a
llo

w
an

ce
s 

- 
lin

k 
to

 s
av

in
g 

ra
te

 c
ha

ng
e

E
le

ct
io

ns
LE

G
A

L,
 E

Q
U

A
LI

T
IE

S
 &

 D
E

M
O

C
R

A
T

IC
40

T
o 

m
ee

t c
os

ts
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

il 
el

ec
tio

ns
 -

 6
0k

 a
lre

ad
y 

in
 

bu
dg

et
E

le
ct

io
ns

LE
G

A
L,

 E
Q

U
A

LI
T

IE
S

 &
 D

E
M

O
C

R
A

T
IC

10
0

P
ar

lim
en

ta
ry

 -
 in

co
m

e 
sh

ow
n 

as
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

fr
om

  G
ov

er
nm

en
t

E
le

ct
io

ns
 s

ys
te

m
s 

su
pp

or
t

E
-G

O
V

 A
N

D
 C

U
S

T
O

M
E

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

27
27

27
S

up
po

rt
 / 

Li
ce

ns
e 

co
st

 fo
r 

th
e 

sh
ar

ed
 e

le
ct

io
ns

 s
er

vi
ce

C
en

su
s

E
-G

O
V

 A
N

D
 C

U
S

T
O

M
E

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

10
T

o 
fu

nd
 th

e 
co

st
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
st

at
ut

or
y 

ce
ns

us
P

ay
m

en
t t

o 
R

oy
al

 M
ai

l f
or

 d
el

iv
er

y 
pr

e 
no

on
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 C
O

M
M

S
 &

 P
O

LI
C

Y
3

3
3

T
o 

fu
nd

 th
e 

co
st

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
po

st
 b

ef
or

e 
12

pm

A
ud

it/
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

F
ee

s
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 
30

30
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 c

os
t i

nc
re

as
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

fe
es

B
D

H
T

 c
le

an
si

ng
 in

co
m

e
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
50

50
50

Li
nk

 to
 s

av
in

g 
w

ith
in

 c
le

an
si

ng
 D

W
21

 to
 o

ff 
se

t l
ac

k 
of

 in
co

m
e

M
ar

ke
t H

al
l l

os
s 

of
 in

co
m

e 
P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 &

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

16
16

16
N

et
 in

co
m

e 
sh

or
tfa

ll 
fr

om
 o

rig
in

al
 b

ud
ge

t f
or

 m
ar

ke
t h

al
l c

om
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 n
ew

 
m

ar
ke

t f
ac

ili
ty

In
co

m
e 

fr
om

 B
D

H
T

 r
e 

sa
le

 o
f h

ou
se

s
P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 &

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

50
50

In
co

m
e 

no
t b

ei
ng

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fr

om
 s

al
e 

of
 h

ou
se

s 
vi

a 
B

D
H

T

B
an

k 
C

ha
rg

es
F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
12

12
12

C
os

t o
f g

iro
 c

ha
rg

es
 fo

r 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

cu
st

om
er

s
B

an
k 

C
ha

rg
es

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

7
7

7
C

os
t o

f  
ba

nk
 c

ha
rg

es
 fo

r 
co

un
ci

l t
ax

 a
nd

 N
D

R
 p

ay
m

en
t

B
an

k 
C

ha
rg

es
F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
41

41
41

C
os

t o
f s

ta
nd

ar
d 

ba
nk

 c
ha

rg
es

 n
ow

 im
pa

ct
in

g 
on

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

fo
r 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l a

cc
ou

nt
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

fr
ee

 p
er

io
d 

of
 b

an
ki

ng
 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

A
dm

in
 G

ra
nt

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

45
65

85
Im

pa
ct

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 h
ou

si
ng

 b
en

ef
it 

ad
m

in
is

tr
ai

to
n 

gr
an

t a
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 D

W
p 

re
po

rt
A

st
on

 F
ie

ld
s 

an
d 

S
he

rw
oo

d 
ro

ad
 lo

ss
 in

co
m

e 
du

e 
to

 s
al

e 
of

 u
ni

ts
LE

G
A

L,
 E

Q
U

A
LI

T
IE

S
 &

 D
E

M
O

C
R

A
T

IC
65

67
69

B
ud

ge
te

d 
in

co
m

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
bu

t w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

m
et

 if
 p

re
m

is
es

 a
re

 s
ol

d.

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 R
ov

er
s 

re
nt

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
15

15
15

P
ep

pe
r 

co
rn

 r
en

t i
m

pl
ic

ai
to

ns
 if

 a
 s

uc
ce

ss
 b

id
 is

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 in

 d
ue

 c
ou

rs
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
w

in
di

ng
 u

p 
or

de
r

R
ep

ai
rs

 a
nd

 R
en

ew
al

s 
fu

nd
s 

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
13

0
13

0
13

0
T

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

fu
nd

 fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 r

ep
ai

rs
 a

nd
 r

en
ew

al
s 

re
se

rv
es

 fo
r 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
an

d 
ve

hi
cl

es
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re

T
O

T
A

L
 U

N
A

V
O

ID
A

B
L

E
66

2
63

6
61

4

S
:\2

01
0-

11
 F

in
an

ci
al

 Y
ea

r\
R

ev
en

ue
 B

ud
ge

ts
 1

0-
11

\B
ud

ge
t R

ep
or

ts
\S

cr
ut

in
y 

B
ud

ge
t A

pp
en

ds
 0

11
20

9A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

20
/1

1/
20

09

Page 37



S
av

in
g

s 
an

d
 in

co
m

e 
g

ro
w

th
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 A

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
 

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f  
R

yl
an

d 
C

en
tr

e 
F

un
di

ng
 

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

0
0

6
T

o 
re

m
ov

e 
B

D
C

's
 g

ra
nt

 s
up

po
rt

 to
 th

e 
R

yl
an

d 
C

en
tr

e 
C

em
et

er
y 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
In

co
m

e 
fr

om
 P

ha
se

 2
 a

nd
 3

 
at

 N
or

th
 C

em
te

ry
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
0

4
8

A
dd

iti
on

al
 in

co
m

e 
ge

ne
ra

te
d

E
le

ct
io

ns
LE

G
A

L,
 E

Q
U

A
LI

T
IE

S
 &

 D
E

M
O

C
R

A
T

IC
0

0
60

R
em

ov
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

as
 n

ot
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

in
 2

01
2/

13
In

cr
ea

se
d 

In
co

m
e 

at
 S

an
de

rs
 P

ar
k

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

1
2

3
H

ire
 F

ee
s,

 P
av

ili
on

 R
en

t &
 R

es
al

es
H

G
V

 C
ar

 P
ar

ki
ng

 In
tr

od
uc

ed
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
2

2
2

 S
to

ur
br

id
ge

 R
oa

d 
ca

r 
pa

rk
 c

ha
rg

es
In

ce
as

ed
 a

llo
tm

en
t i

nc
om

e 
fr

om
 n

ew
 p

lo
ts

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

3
3

3
B

as
ed

 9
0 

ne
w

 p
lo

ts
 b

ei
ng

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
fo

ot
ba

ll 
pi

tc
h 

in
co

m
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ca

pi
ta

l 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
3

3
3

In
co

m
e 

of
f s

et
 b

y 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

co
st

 o
f p

ro
vi

si
on

“T
og

et
he

r 
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
” 

– 
cu

t o
ne

 e
di

tio
n

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
M

M
S

 &
 P

O
LI

C
Y

5
5

5
E

st
im

at
ed

 n
et

 c
os

t p
er

 e
di

tio
n

R
ed

uc
e 

m
em

be
rs

 c
ar

 a
llo

w
an

ce
 to

 0
.4

0p
 p

er
 m

ile
LE

G
A

L,
 E

Q
U

A
LI

T
IE

S
 &

 D
E

M
O

C
R

A
T

IC
5

5
5

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

ve
rs

pe
nt

 to
 b

ud
ge

t b
y 

£4
k 

- 
re

du
ct

io
n 

w
ou

ld
  

br
in

g 
bu

dg
et

 b
ac

k 
in

 li
ne

M
ul

it 
S

to
re

y 
Li

gh
tin

g 
sa

vi
ng

s.
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
8

8
8

C
ap

ita
l b

id
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
of

 li
gh

tin
g 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
w

ou
ld

 
ge

ne
ra

te
 s

av
in

gs
S

to
p 

th
e 

D
es

ttn
at

io
n 

W
oc

s 
fu

nd
in

g
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
10

10
10

T
o 

re
m

ov
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

cu
rr

en
tly

 m
ad

e 
by

 B
D

C
G

en
er

al
 S

av
in

gs
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 C
O

M
M

S
 &

 P
O

LI
C

Y
10

10
10

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
its

 -
 r

ec
ov

er
y 

of
 o

ve
rp

ay
m

en
ts

 (
m

ay
 

al
lo

ca
te

 p
/t 

po
st

)
F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
10

10
10

A
dd

iti
on

al
 in

co
m

e 
ge

ne
ra

te
d

La
te

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 fe

e 
to

 b
e 

le
vi

ed
F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
12

12
12

B
as

ed
 o

n 
%

 o
f c

ur
re

nt
 C

 T
ax

 D
D

's
 to

 le
vy

 £
10

 fe
e 

pe
r 

la
te

/ 
re

tu
rn

ed
 D

D
S

tr
ee

t T
ra

di
ng

 C
on

se
nt

s
P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 A

N
D

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

15
15

15
In

co
m

e 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

fr
om

 s
tr

ee
t t

ra
di

ng
 c

on
se

nt
s

O
D

 b
ud

ge
t

H
R

 &
 O

D
20

20
20

T
o 

re
du

ce
 O

D
 c

or
po

ra
te

 b
ud

ge
t t

o 
£1

20
k

A
dd

iti
on

al
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
nc

om
e

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 

20

A
dd

iti
on

al
 c

ap
ita

l r
ec

ei
pt

s 
fr

om
 s

al
e 

of
 in

du
st

ria
l u

ni
ts

  c
. 

£1
m

 g
en

er
at

in
g 

ca
sh

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
in

ve
st

m
en

t a
t l

ea
st

 fo
r 

20
10

/1
1 

P
ar

ki
ng

 In
cr

ea
se

d 
In

co
m

e
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
22

22
22

B
as

ed
 o

n 
re

po
rt

 to
 c

ab
 2

/9
/0

9 
- 

£9
5k

 to
ta

l -
 £

43
k 

re
 s

ta
ffi

ng
 

- 
£3

3k
 h

an
ov

er
 s

tr
ee

t -
 £

10
k 

30
 m

in
 ti

ck
et

s 
+£

13
k 

re
 

w
ai

tin
g 

sp
ac

es
 r

em
ov

ed
P

ar
ki

ng
 In

cr
ea

se
d 

In
co

m
e

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

25
25

F
ro

m
 M

ar
ke

t H
al

l s
ite

 -
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 c
ar

 p
ar

k 
- 

2 
ye

ar
s

P
ar

ki
ng

 In
cr

ea
se

d 
In

co
m

e
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
83

83
83

B
as

ed
 o

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l v

ol
um

e 
of

 c
ar

 p
ar

k 
sa

le
s 

du
rin

g 
20

09
/1

0
G

ra
nt

 fu
nd

in
g 

re
 c

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 fa
re

s
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
90

E
st

im
at

ed
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 g
ra

nt
 to

 b
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 in
 2

01
0/

11
Lo

ca
l N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 C
O

M
M

S
 &

 P
O

LI
C

Y
90

12
0

12
3

R
em

ov
al

 o
f L

N
P

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t
E

le
ct

io
ns

LE
G

A
L,

 E
Q

U
A

LI
T

IE
S

 &
 D

E
M

O
C

R
A

T
IC

10
0

P
ar

lim
en

ta
ry

 e
le

ct
io

n 
of

fs
et

 b
y 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 p

re
ss

ur
e

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 s

al
ar

y 
bu

dg
et

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t b
as

ed
 o

n 
0%

 
pa

y 
aw

ar
d 

20
10

/1
1

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
12

5
12

5
12

5
R

em
ov

e/
re

pl
ac

e 
or

ig
in

al
 2

01
0/

11
 s

al
ar

y 
bu

dg
et

s 
w

ith
 

re
qu

ire
d 

le
ve

ls
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

0%
 p

ay
 a

w
ar

d 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

M
et

ho
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 D

el
iv

er
y

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
14

8
17

17
N

et
 im

pa
ct

 o
f s

ha
re

d 
se

rv
ic

e/
 jo

in
t w

or
ki

ng
 a

nd
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
m

et
ho

ds
 o

f d
el

iv
er

in
g 

C
ou

nc
il 

se
rv

ic
es

T
O

T
A

L
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
80

7
50

1
55

0

S
:\2

01
0-

11
 F

in
an

ci
al

 Y
ea

r\
R

ev
en

ue
 B

ud
ge

ts
 1

0-
11

\B
ud

ge
t R

ep
or

ts
\S

cr
ut

in
y 

B
ud

ge
t A

pp
en

ds
 0

11
20

9A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

20
/1

1/
20

09

Page 38



N
E

W
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 B

ID
S

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
H

/M
/L

C
o

m
m

en
ta

ry
  (

 li
n

k 
to

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 )
 

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

N
or

th
 C

em
te

ry
 P

ha
se

 2
 E

xp
an

si
on

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

95
H

N
or

th
 B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 C

em
et

er
y 

w
as

 p
la

nn
ed

 a
s 

a 
th

re
e 

ph
as

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
 P

ha
se

 I 
op

en
ed

 in
 2

00
6 

ha
s 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
1-

2 
ye

ar
s 

of
 fu

ll 
bu

ria
l s

pa
ce

 le
ft 

in
 c

on
se

cr
at

ed
 

gr
ou

nd
.  

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 b
ur

ia
l s

pa
ce

 fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

e 
ne

ed
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 
P

ha
se

 I 
- 

th
is

 fu
nd

in
g 

w
ou

ld
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
pa

ce
s 

fo
r 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 y
ea

rs
M

ul
ti 

S
to

re
y 

Li
gh

tin
g 

lin
ke

d 
to

 s
av

in
gs

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

25
H

T
o 

in
st

al
l m

or
e 

en
er

gy
 e

ffi
ci

en
t l

ig
ht

in
g 

in
 th

e 
m

ul
ti 

st
or

ey
 c

ar
 p

ar
k

F
un

di
ng

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 r
is

ky
 p

la
y/

di
ve

rs
io

na
ry

 
sc

he
m

e 
at

 C
at

sh
ill

 (
S

he
lle

y 
C

lo
se

).
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
12

0
0

H
T

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
pl

ay
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t /
 d

iv
er

si
on

ar
y 

ac
tiv

ite
s 

in
 C

at
sh

ill
  -

 th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

of
 £

12
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 w
ith

 £
50

k 
fr

om
 D

C
F

S
 to

 m
ee

t o
ve

ra
ll 

pr
oj

ec
t c

os
ts

 

P
la

y 
A

re
a 

re
m

ov
al

s 
an

d 
U

pd
gr

ad
es

 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
12

H
T

o 
re

m
ov

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

la
y 

ar
ea

s 
th

at
 a

re
 u

ns
ui

ta
bl

e 
an

d 
to

 u
pg

ra
de

 th
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

he
re

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

D
ep

ot
 S

ite
 A

la
rm

 S
ys

te
m

 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
25

H
T

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

m
or

e 
su

ita
bl

e 
al

ar
m

 s
ys

te
m

 a
t t

he
 d

ep
ot

F
un

di
ng

 fo
r 

D
F

G
s

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 &
 E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
90

90
90

H
T

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
D

F
G

s 
to

 le
ve

l e
xp

ec
te

d 
in

 th
e 

st
at

ut
or

y 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

P
av

ilo
n 

R
oo

f a
nd

 T
oi

le
t E

nh
an

ce
m

en
ts

  (
sa

nd
er

s 
pa

rk
)

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

55
H

 

T
he

 r
oo

f i
s 

in
 n

ee
d 

of
 r

ep
la

cm
en

t/r
ep

ai
r.

  I
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

pa
tc

he
d 

up
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

s 
bu

t l
ea

ks
 

ha
ve

 im
pa

ct
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

bu
ild

in
g.

  T
he

 to
ile

ts
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

in
 n

ee
d 

of
 

up
da

tin
g/

im
pr

ov
in

g 
in

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 s
ea

so
na

l c
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

of
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

  
P

ay
 o

n 
F

oo
t e

xp
en

se
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
20

0
80

0
M

A
dd

iti
on

al
 P

ay
 o

n 
F

oo
t i

ns
ta

lla
tio

ns

B
ol

ey
n 

R
oa

d 
F

oo
tb

al
l P

itc
h

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

11
5

M

F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

re
ce

nt
 P

P
G

17
 A

ud
it 

an
d 

th
e 

is
su

es
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 w
ith

 la
ck

/q
ua

la
tiv

e 
of

 
pr

ov
is

io
n,

 w
e 

ar
e 

lo
ok

in
g 

to
 e

nh
an

ce
 c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 b
y 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
dr

ai
na

ge
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
pi

tc
he

s,
 c

re
at

in
g 

a 
ne

w
 c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

re
a 

an
d 

cr
ea

tin
g 

1 
se

ni
or

, 2
 J

un
io

r 
an

d 
1 

m
in

i p

K
in

g 
G

eo
rg

e 
F

oo
tb

al
l P

itc
h

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

85
M

F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

re
ce

nt
 P

P
G

17
 A

ud
it 

an
d 

th
e 

is
su

es
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 w
ith

 la
ck

/q
ua

la
tiv

e 
of

 
pr

ov
is

io
n,

 w
e 

ar
e 

lo
ok

in
g 

to
 e

nh
an

ce
 c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 b
y 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
dr

ai
na

ge
 a

nd
 th

e 
cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 tw
o 

ch
an

gi
ng

 r
oo

m
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
se

ni
or

 p
itc

h.
 A

ll 
th

is
 w

or
k 

w
ill

 m
ee

t T
he

 f

A
llo

tm
en

ts
- 

N
ew

 In
ns

 L
an

e 
F

ra
nk

le
y

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

20
M

F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

re
ce

nt
 P

P
G

17
 a

ud
it 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t h
as

 a
 c

ur
re

nt
 s

ho
rt

fa
ll 

fo
r 

al
lo

tm
en

ts
. W

he
re

 
po

ss
ib

le
 w

e 
w

an
t t

o 
ut

ili
se

 e
xi

st
in

g 
B

D
C

 la
nd

. T
hi

s 
ar

ea
 o

f l
an

d 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t w
ith

 
a 

fu
rt

he
r 

45
 p

lo
ts

 a
t 1

/3
2 

A
cr

e 
an

d 
ca

r 
pa

rk
in

g 
ar

ea
.

A
llo

tm
en

t e
xt

en
si

on
s-

 W
at

t C
lo

se
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
18

M

F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

re
ce

nt
 P

P
G

17
 a

ud
it 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t h
as

 a
 c

ur
re

nt
 s

ho
rt

fa
ll 

fo
r 

al
lo

tm
en

ts
. W

he
re

 
po

ss
ib

le
 w

e 
w

an
t t

o 
ut

ili
se

 e
xi

st
in

g 
B

D
C

 la
nd

. T
hi

s 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

w
ill

 c
re

at
 1

8 
pl

ot
s 

at
 1

/3
2 

A
cr

e 
an

d 
a 

sm
al

l c
ar

 p
ar

ki
ng

 a
re

a.
 

P
la

y 
A

re
a 

re
m

ov
al

s 
an

d 
U

pd
gr

ad
es

 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
64

50
M

F
ur

th
er

 p
la

y 
ar

ea
 r

em
ov

al
s 

du
e 

to
 fa

ci
lit

es
 b

ei
ng

 o
f i

na
de

qu
at

e 
st

an
da

rd
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 R

ug
by

 F
oo

tb
al

l C
lu

b
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
50

M
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

fo
r 

en
ha

nc
ed

 fa
ci

tli
es

 a
nd

 p
la

yi
ng

 p
tic

he
s.

 
M

ow
er

 w
ith

 G
ra

ss
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
15

M
A

dd
iti

on
al

 p
la

nt
 a

nd
 m

ac
hi

ne
ry

 
Lu

to
n 

V
an

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

25
M

A
dd

iti
on

al
 v

eh
ic

le
G

ra
nt

s 
to

 R
S

Ls
P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 &

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

25
0

M
T

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
gr

an
ts

 to
 R

S
Ls

 fo
r 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng

O
ld

 C
em

et
er

y 
T

oi
le

ts
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
17

L
T

he
 to

ile
ts

 in
 th

e 
O

ld
 C

em
et

er
y 

do
 n

ot
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 D

D
A

 r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

.  
T

he
re

 is
 n

o 
lig

ht
in

g 
or

 h
an

dw
as

hi
ng

 fa
ci

lti
ie

s 
an

d 
no

 w
he

el
ch

ai
r 

ac
ce

ss
. 

3 
S

m
al

l R
C

V
s

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 &

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

21
0

L
T

o 
de

liv
er

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 w
ho

le
 o

f d
is

tr
ic

t 
15

00
0 

W
he

el
ie

 B
in

s
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
45

0
L

T
o 

de
liv

er
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 w

ho
le

 o
f d

is
tr

ic
t 

F
or

k 
Li

ft 
fo

r 
S

to
re

s
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
25

L
T

o 
de

liv
er

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 w
ho

le
 o

f d
is

tr
ic

t 
G

at
es

 &
  B

ar
rie

r
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

C
E

N
E

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
35

L
T

o 
de

liv
er

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 w
ho

le
 o

f d
is

tr
ic

t 
B

U
R

T
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 C
O

M
M

S
 &

 P
O

LI
C

Y
25

L
T

o 
fu

nd
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l v

eh
ic

le
 fo

r 
th

e 
B

U
R

T
 s

er
vi

ce

T
O

T
A

L
 N

E
W

 B
ID

S
 -

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 
1,

85
4

23
4

14
0

S
:\2

01
0-

11
 F

in
an

ci
al

 Y
ea

r\
R

ev
en

ue
 B

ud
ge

ts
 1

0-
11

\B
ud

ge
t R

ep
or

ts
\S

cr
ut

in
y 

B
ud

ge
t A

pp
en

ds
 0

11
20

9A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

20
/1

1/
20

09

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



  

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW BOARD 
 

1ST DECEMBER 2009 
 

 
REVIEW OF TREASURY MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Councillor Geoff Denaro 
Responsible Head of Service Jayne Pickering – Head of Financial 

Services 
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 To inform Members of the current Treasury Management arrangements in 

place to ensure the security and effectiveness of Council investments.  
 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 Members to note the current arrangements for Treasury Management 

activities within the Council. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 

3.1 Treasury Management is defined as : the management of the 
organisation's cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those 
activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those 
risks. 

3.2 Local authorities manage surplus cash as part of their broader treasury 
management responsibilities. They operate within a national investment 
framework in which the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) describes the practices that define good treasury 
management. Local authorities are currently expected to: 

 

• Define local investment limits and guidelines in an annual investment 
strategy prior to the start of each financial year and ensure that it is 
approved by full Council 

 

• Prepare an annual treasury management strategy and plan prior to the 
start of each financial year; and 

 

• Prepare an annual report after the year-end. 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 41



 

3.3 Bromsgrove District Council has – in the normal course of business – 
surplus cash, from which it seeks a return through investment. In 2004 the 
capital receipt generated from the Large Scale Voluntary Transfer of 
housing stock to BDHT increased the investments held by the Council and 
with the rates of return available at that time this investment income 
became a valuable source of income, which helped reduce the Council 
Tax burden.  

 
3.4 In terms of governance and scrutiny, the Council has always complied with 

the national framework and (CIPFA) recommended practice. Current 
arrangements include: 

 

• Treasury Management Strategy (TMS) – the annual TMS, which sets 
out the planned treasury management approach for the forthcoming 
year is presented to, and approved by, full Council in March each year 
(i.e. in advance of the financial year); and 

 

• Treasury management activity and performance is also incorporated 
within the Quarterly Integrated Finance and Performance reports 
presented to Cabinet and the Performance Management Board.  

 
The Council currently complies with this recommended practice. 
 

3.5 The world has been experiencing an economic downturn of exceptional 
proportions in which the origins can be traced back to the US and the sale 
of risky mortgages. However, by Summer 2007, the problem spread 
around the world, eventually leading to the collapse of the Icelandic 
banking system. 

 
3.6 At the time, 127 English local authorities had funds in one or more of the 

Icelandic banks, with deposits totalling more than £954 million.  
 
3.7 Many other local authorities – including this Council – did not have any 

funds invested in Icelandic banks at the time of their collapse. However, 
the repercussions of the collapse of Icelandic banks raised questions 
about the stewardship of funds held by local authorities.  

 
3.8 In response to the Icelandic banking collapse, the Audit Commission 

carried out an urgent investigation, which examined local authorities’ 
arrangements for placing and managing cash on deposit. This led to the 
publication of a national report in March 2009. 

 
3.9 One of the key messages highlighted in the Audit Commission’s report 

was that local treasury management arrangements vary and (nationally) 
the governance and scrutiny of treasury management arrangements 
specifically is generally poor. 

 

Page 42



 

3.10 A key recommendation within the Audit Commission’s report was that 
CIPFA should revise and tighten its Treasury Management Code to take 
account of the findings in their report. 

 
3.11 Consequently CIPFA are currently consulting upon a revised Treasury 

Management Code and guidance notes. The key changes to that Code 
are as follows: 

 
• Enhancement of the role of scrutiny of treasury management strategies 

and procedures. It will be the Council’s responsibility to identify an 
appropriate body or individual to have responsibility for the scrutiny 
function, which may be a committee such as a finance committee or 
audit committee. 

 

• Currently, full Council must approve the Treasury Management 
Strategy. The revised Code will allow approval from a relevant 
committee. Where approval is not by full Council, the decisions made 
must be reported to full Council.  

 

• The revised Code will require Treasury Management training to be 
available for relevant Council members with responsibility for treasury 
management; and 

 

• The existing Code requires the Treasury Management Strategy to be 
approved prior to the start of the financial year and a report presented 
after the end of the financial year. The revised Code will also require 
an interim or mid-year operational report.  

 
3.12 Many of the concerns raised in the Audit Commission’s report did not 

apply to this Council. Most notably of course, our approach protected the 
Council from unnecessary exposure to the Icelandic banking collapse.  
However officers will address the outcomes of the consultation to improve 
arrangements further at Bromsgrove District Council. 

 
4.  CURRENT ARRANGEMENTS AT BROMSGROVE 
 
 
4.1 The current funds are managed in house with one of the finance officers 

undertaking this responsibility as part of a wider role. To ensure specialist 
advice and support is available for our investment purposes the Council 
has a contract with an external advisor “Arlingclose” who provide bespoke 
advice to officers to enable informed judgements to be made on placing 
investments with organisations.  Members will be aware that we were 
advised as far back as May 2006 to withdraw any funds invested in 
Icelandic Banks following advice from Arlingclose due to their concerns as 
to the financial infrastructure of these institutions.  

 
4.2 Daily schedules on ratings for individual banking institutions are received 

from Arlingclose by a number of officers in finance. In addition a weekly 

Page 43



 

update on movements in rates and economic changes are available. 
Regular meetings are held to discuss the opportunities for investment and 
revisions to policy and strategy together with Arlingclose providing training 
to officers in legislation changes and the development of the annual 
strategy in conjunction with Council officers. 

 
4.3 Credit Risk 

 
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as 
well as credit exposures to the Council’s customers. Credit risk is 
minimised by use of a specified list of investment counterparty criteria and 
by limiting the amount invested with each institution. The Council receives 
credit rating details from its Treasury Management advisers on a daily 
basis and any counterparty falling below the criteria is removed from the 
list.  
 
The Council has not had and does not expect any default losses by any of 
its counterparties in relation to investments. 
 
Due to market conditions the Council has reduced its credit risk for all new 
investments by only investing in the highest rated instruments and has 
shortened the allowable length of investments in order to reduce risk. 
 
 
The credit criteria in respect of financial assets managed in-house by the 
Council are as follows: 
 
Financial Asset Category Criteria (Fitch ratings) Maximum Investment 
Deposits with banks Short Term: F1+/F1 

Support: 1,2,3 
Long Term: minimum ‘AA-’/A 

£3million/£2million 

Deposits with building 
societies 

Short Term: F1+/F1 
Support: 1,2,3 
Long Term: minimum ‘AA-’/A 

£3million/£2million 

Deposits with Debt 
Management Account – 
Deposit Facility (DMADF) 

 £no upper limit * 

 
 
 
Fitch Ratings is an international credit rating agency (one of three 
nationally recognised rating agencies alongside Moody’s and Standard & 
Poor’s). Fitch Rating' s long-term credit ratings are set up along a scale 
from 'AAA' to 'D' where ‘AAA’ designates the best quality companies, 
reliable and stable through to ‘D’ where the company has defaulted on 
obligations and Fitch believes that it will generally default on all or most of 
its obligations. Fitch’s short term ratings indicate the potential level of 
default within a 12 month period. F1+ is the best quality grade, indicating 
exceptionally strong capacity of obligor to meet its financial commitment 

Page 44



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
At 30 September 2009 short term investments comprised: 
 
 31 March 09 

£ 
30 Sept 09 

£ 
Deposits with Banks/Building Societies 8,425 10,550 
Deposits with Debt Management Office 
(DMADF)* 

5,500 5,000 
 

Total 13,925 15,550 

 
 
Investments with the DMADF are guaranteed by HM Treasury. Following 
advice from the Council’s treasury advisors, from a credit perspective no 
upper limit was imposed on investments with the DMADF. 

 
4.4 Income from investments 

 
An investment income target of £166k has been set for 2009/10 using a 
projected return rate of 1.5 – 1.75 %. During the year bank base rates 
have dropped to 0.5% with little expectation of any upward increase in 
rates in the near future.  
 
In the first half of 2009/10 the Council received income from investments 
of £43k. In order to maximise available returns within our risk criteria the 
Council is currently working with our treasury advisors with the view to 
placing a proportion of our investments in bonds issued by Multilateral 
Development Banks. These bonds meet the Government’s criteria for 
specified investments (i.e. offering high security and high liquidity) 

 
 
4.5 In addition to the external advice in relation to the choice of investments 

there are a number of robust internal control arrangements in place within 
the Council which are set out within the Treasury Management Principles 
(TMPs) which are regularly reviewed to ensure the most effective and 
secure controls are in place.  

 
4.6 The Principles include the following controls that are adhered to by officers 

when any dealing / investments are being made : 
 

• Daily cash flow monitoring  
• Ensuring investments are only placed with the approved counter 

part list ( very limited at present time)  
• Adherence and recognition of the Councils money laundering policy  

Page 45



 

• Secure password protected access to nominated officers in finance 
to place investments 

• Approved limits of investment levels with individual institutions 
• Separate authorisation of investments from senior accountants  
• Monthly reconciliations of the payments made and investments 

against the bank account. 
• Quarterly monitoring of investment portfolio to Cabinet and 

Performance Management Board 
 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 None other than those already included in this report.  
 
 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 The Council has a statutory responsibility under Section 151 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 to 'make arrangements for the proper administration 
of their financial affairs this includes securing effective arrangements for 
treasury management. 

 
 
7. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1 The effective management of our investments ensures the funding is 

available for the delivery of all of the Council objectives 
 
8. RISK MANAGEMENT 
  
8.1 The effective controls we have in place ensure the balance between risk 

and generating a level of investment income back to the Council. 
  

9. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Effective and secure treasury management arrangements ensure that the 

investments made  
 
10. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are no equalities and diversity issues arising from this report. 
 
11. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 Effective management of our investments within a robust framework support 

the Councils delivery of value for money within a low risk environment. 
 
12. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Procurement Issues: None 

Page 46



 

 
Personnel Implications: None 
 
Governance/Performance Management: None 
 
Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998: None 
 
Policy: None 
 
Environmental: None 
 

 
13. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 
  
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

 

Chief Executive 
 

 

Executive Director - Partnerships and Projects  
Executive Director – Services  
Assistant Chief Executive  
Head of Service  
Head of Financial Services  
Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 

 

Head of Organisational Development & HR  
Corporate Procurement Team  

 
14. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 
15. APPENDICES 
 None 
 
  
16. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 Treasury Management Strategy March 2009 
 Quarterly integrated finance reports to Cabinet & PMB 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   Jayne Pickering  
E Mail:  j.pickering@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881207 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



  

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

JOINT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY BOARD 
 

TUESDAY 1ST DECEMBER 2009 
 

 
 
SCRUTINY OF CRIME AND DISORDER 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Cllr G. N. Denaro 
Responsible Head of Service 
For Overview and Scrutiny 

Mrs. C. Felton – Head of Legal, 
Equalities and Democratic Services 

Non-Key Decision  
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report is to brief Members of the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Board on 

the statutory provisions for the scrutiny of crime and disorder.   
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1. That Members note the requirements and role for the scrutiny of crime and 

disorder and comment on how they would like to see this taken forward.   
 
2.2. That the Chairman of the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Board be requested 

to meet with the Portfolio Holder for Community and Customer Engagement 
and Community Safety and relevant officers, including a representative from 
the Community Safety Partnership, to discuss the approach and timetable 
for the scrutiny of crime and disorder in line with statutory requirements.   

 
2.3. That any proposed protocol resulting from the outcome of the meeting 

referred to in 2.2 above be submitted to the Joint Overview and Scrutiny 
Board and the Community Safety Partnership for formal approval.   

 
2.4. That a special meeting of the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Board be 

convened in the spring of 2010 to consider crime and disorder scrutiny 
matters.   

 
3. BACKGROUND 

3.1 Sections 19 – 21 Police and Justice Act 2006 (effective as from 30th April 
2009) and the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 
2009 refer to the requirement to introduce procedures for the scrutiny of the 
Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships (CDRPs), including the 
introduction or designation of a scrutiny committee for this purpose.  In 
Bromsgrove the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Board (JOSB) has been 
designated as the committee responsible for scrutiny of the CDRP.   

Agenda Item 7

Page 49



 

3.2. The statutory powers a crime and disorder scrutiny committee has are: 
• To scrutinise how the CDRP partnership members are discharging 
their crime and disorder functions,  
• To require information to be provided by partners, and require 
attendance at meetings, and 
• To require partners to respond to reports and ‘have regard’ to 
recommendations.   

 
3.3. Legislation requires the members of the local CDRP to take part in the 

Overview and Scrutiny process. This includes the main CDRP partners 
(‘responsible authorities’): the Council, the police authority and police force, 
the primary care trust, the fire and rescue authority, plus the ‘co-operating 
bodies’: probation, parish councils, NHS trusts, proprietors of independent 
schools, further education institutions. 

 
3.4. In Bromsgrove, the JOSB has been designated as the crime and disorder 

scrutiny committee.  At its meeting on Wednesday 29th April 2009, the 
Council made amendments to the Overview and Scrutiny functions and 
resolved: 

~ “(a) that a Joint Overview and Scrutiny Board be created to enable 
the Council to discharge the following functions: Councillor Calls for 
Action, Crime and Disorder Calls for Action, Petitions, scrutiny of 
the budget; and that it be designated as the Crime and Disorder 
Committee in accordance with the Police and Justice Act 2006”.   

4. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION PARTNERSHIPS 

4.1. Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships (CDRPs) are partnership 
bodies made up of the key statutory organisations involved in tackling and 
preventing crime and disorder in the local area.  In Bromsgrove the CDRP is 
known as the Community Safety Partnership.   

 
4.2. The 1998 Crime and Disorder Act established partnerships between the 

police, local authorities, probation service, health authorities, the voluntary 
sector, and local residents and businesses.  According to the Home Office, 
“these partnerships are working to reduce crime and disorder in their area 
by: 

~ Establishing the levels of crime and disorder problems in their area, 
and consulting widely with the population of that area to make sure 
that the partnership’s perception matches that of local people, 
especially minority groups, such as gay men and lesbians, or 
members of ethnic minorities. 

~ Devising a strategy containing measures to tackle those priority 
problems. This is to include targets, and target owners for each of 
the priority areas. The strategy will last for three years, but must be 
kept under review by the partnership”. (Home Office) 

 
4.3. In Bromsgrove the Community Safety Partnership includes: Bromsgrove 

District Council (including the Portfolio Holder for Community Safety and 

Page 50



 

The Head of  Street Scene & Community, the Community Safety team, 
Neighbourhood Wardens and Local Strategic Partnership Officer ), West 
Mercia Police, the West Mercia Police Authority, the West Mercia Probation 
Trust, Worcestershire County Council, Redditch Borough Council, 
Bromsgrove District Housing Trust, Worcestershire PCT and Worcestershire 
Drug Alcohol Abuse Team (DAAT).   

 
5. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS 
 
5.1. According to the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 

2009, section 4, “A crime disorder committee shall meet to review or 
scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with the 
discharge by the responsible authorities of their crime and disorder 
functions, no less than twice in every twelve month period”.   

 
5.2. It is currently envisaged that the JOSB will continue to act as the crime and 

disorder scrutiny committee and will meet around 4 times a year to consider 
crime and disorder matters.  The JOSB would also be able to establish Task 
Group reviews to consider specific crime and disorder issues in depth and 
report back to the main committee, in accordance with current constitutional 
arrangements.   

 
5.3. It is recommended that a further meeting of the JOSB be convened in the 

Spring of 2010 in order to consider crime and disorder scrutiny matters and 
the performance of the CDRP.  Key stakeholders from the CDRP could also 
be invited to attend this meeting.  It is proposed that he timetable for the 
future pattern of crime and disorder scrutiny meetings be finally agreed after 
the proposed discussions between the Chairman of the JOSB and the 
Portfolio Holder for Community and Customer Engagement and Community 
Safety.  

 
6. ATTENDANCE AT COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
 
6.1. In discharging its scrutiny of crime and disorder functions, the JOSB will 

require the attendance before it of relevant officers, employees or members 
of a responsible crime and disorder body or partner organisation to answer 
questions or otherwise provide information.  In such a case, representatives 
will be requested to attend in the normal way (see the Overview and 
Scrutiny Guidance published by Bromsgrove District Council).  It is 
envisaged that this process be clarified in a crime and disorder protocol or 
guidance agreed between the JOSB and the Community Safety 
Partnership. 

 
6.2. According to the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 

2009, section 6(2), “the crime and disorder committee must give the person 
whose attendance it requires… at least two weeks’ notice of the date on 
which that person is required to attend, unless the person agrees to a 
shorter period of notice” and at (3), ”a person whose attendance is 

Page 51



 

required… shall attend on the specified date, unless the person has a 
reasonable excuse”. 

 
7. REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
 
7.1. According to the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 

2009, section 5(1), where a crime and disorder committee makes a request 
for information relevant to the exercise of its functions to the responsible 
authorities or the co-operating persons or bodies, the authorities must 
provide such information.  Such information “must be provided no later than 
the date indicated in the request or, if some or all of the information cannot 
be reasonably be provided on such date, as soon as reasonably possible”.  
It is envisaged that this process be clarified in a crime and disorder protocol 
or guidance agreed between the JOSB and the Community Safety 
Partnership.   

 
8. SCRUTINY REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
8.1. Overview and scrutiny committees may decide, upon consideration of a 

matter, to make a report and recommendations to the responsible authority 
and decision maker(s), in accordance with the usual Overview and Scrutiny 
process (as set out in the Overview and Scrutiny Guidance published by 
Bromsgrove District Council). 

 
8.2. Overview and scrutiny committees cannot make any executive decisions, 

but they may make recommendations to any statutory partner or 
organisation that affects the well being of local residents, including members 
of the Community Safety Partnership (or CDRP).  Scrutiny reports usually 
aim to set out the context and findings of a scrutiny investigation and set out 
any recommendations, along with the evidence to support those 
recommendations.   

 
9. THE EXECUTIVE RESPONSE 
 
9.1. When scrutiny recommendations are put forward to any organisation or 

partnerships, overview and scrutiny committees usually request an Executive 
Response.  In the case of recommendations to Bromsgrove District Council, 
the Executive Response is usually requested from the Cabinet.  In the case of 
other organisations, an Executive Response may be requested to the 
decision making body of the agencies to which recommendations have been 
addressed.  

 
9.2. An Executive Response usually outlines the broad response to the report 

and recommendations put forward by the scrutiny committee along with an 
Executive Decision for each of the individual recommendations for which it 
has authority.  An Executive Decision may either agree, reject or amend a 
scrutiny recommendation.  An Executive Response may also include an 
action plan and timetable for the implementation of agreed scrutiny 
recommendations.   

Page 52



 

 
9.3. According to the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 

2009, section 7 (1), “where a crime and disorder committee makes a report or 
recommendations to a responsible authority or to a co-operating person or 
body…. The responses to such report or recommendations of each relevant 
authority, body or person shall be- 
~ In writing; and 
~ Submitted to the crime and disorder committee with a period of 1 

month from the date of the report or recommendations or, if this is not 
reasonably possible, as soon as possible thereafter”.   

 
9.4. It is envisaged that this process be clarified in a crime and disorder protocol 

or guidance agreed between the JOSB and the Community Safety 
Partnership.   

 
10. MONITORING AND REVIEW 
 
10.1. The Overview and Scrutiny Boards at Bromsgrove District Council, like most 

other local authority scrutiny committees, routinely monitor and review the 
implementation of agreed scrutiny recommendations.  This enables all 
parties to check on the implementation status of agreed recommendations 
and helps to monitor the effectiveness of the scrutiny process.   

 
10.2. According to the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 

2009, section 7 (2), “the crime and disorder committee shall review such 
responses and monitor the action (if any) taken by the relevant responsible 
authorities, co-operating persons or bodies in accordance with its powers”.   

 
10.3. In order to do this, the responsible agencies will be requested to provide a 

periodic update on the implementation of agreed scrutiny recommendations, 
until all of the agreed recommendations have been fully implemented.  
Where the responsible agencies have provided an action plan as a part of 
their Executive Response, this can be used as a tool to effectively monitor 
implementation.  It is envisaged that this process be clarified in a crime and 
disorder protocol or guidance agreed between the JOSB and the 
Community Safety Partnership.   

 
11. SCRUTINY OF CRIME AND DISORDER PROTOCOL OR GUIDANCE 
 
11.1. In order to ensure that there is a clear process for discharging the scrutiny 

of crime and disorder function, there is a need to establish appropriate 
procedures, protocols or guidance for how it should be carried out.  There 
may also be a need to amend the Council Constitution to reflect this.  

 
11.2. It is therefore recommended that the Chairman of the JOSB meet with the 

Portfolio Holder for Community and Customer Engagement and Community 
Safety and appropriate officers to discuss possible options for establishing a 
process to effectively scrutinise crime and disorder matters.   

 

Page 53



 

11.3. According to the Home Office Guidance for the Scrutiny of Crime and 
Disorder Matters – England, Implementing Sections 19 and 20 of the Police 
and Justice Act 2006, local authorities and CDRP partners should “consider 
developing a short, flexible and meaningful protocol which lays the mutual 
expectations of scrutiny members and partners of the community safety 
members and partners of the community safety scrutiny process”.  (Scrutiny 
of Crime and Disorder Matters – England p.25).   

 
11.4. Attached at Appendix 1 is a prototype protocol by way of example of what 

may be included in an agreed protocol or guidance.  This is intended to 
establish and agree outline procedures and clarify expectations on how the 
scrutiny of crime and disorder will work.  It is not envisaged as a straight 
jacket to the practical working of the process.  It is advised that the 
Chairman of the JOSB discuss the protocol or guidance at the proposed 
meeting with the Portfolio Holder for Community and Customer Engagement 
and Community Safety.   

12. INVOLVEMENT OF THE WEST MERCIA POLICE AUTHORITY 

12.1. According to the Home Office Guidance for the Scrutiny of Crime and 
Disorder Matters – England, Implementing Sections 19 and 20 of the Police 
and Justice Act 2006, “local authorities should, in all instances, presume 
that the police authority should play an active part at committee when 
community safety matters are being discussed” (p.29).  It goes on to outline 
different options that may be followed to involve police authorities in the 
process, including the cooption of a member of the police authority or the 
appointment of a member of the police authority as an advisor to the crime 
and disorder scrutiny committee.  The latter option is given in the guidance 
as the probable preference for most district authorities and it is envisaged at 
this stage that the West Mercia Police Authority will be requested to 
nominate a representative as advisor to the JOSB on crime and disorder 
matters, with a standing invitation to attend when crime and disorder issues 
are being discussed and requested to attend when expert advice is 
envisaged to be required.   

 
12.2. It is advised that consideration of this option is considered at the proposed 

meeting between the Chairman and the Portfolio Holder for Community and 
Customer Engagement and Community Safety.   

 
13. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1 There are no financial implications envisaged for the purposed of this report. 
 
14. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

14.1 The following legislation, regulations and Government Guidance is relevant 
to the discharge of the scrutiny of crime and disorder function, as outlined in 
this report: 

Page 54



 

~ The 1998 Crime and Disorder Act. 
~ Police and Justice Act 2006 Sections 19 – 21. 
~ The Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009. 
~ The National Support Framework, Delivering Safer and Confident 

Communities, guidance for the scrutiny of crime and disorder matters – 
England.   

15. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
15.1  The scrutiny of crime and disorder links to the Council Objective Three: 

Sense of Community and Well Being.  
 
16. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
16.1. If the Council fails to adopt a policy and procedure for the scrutiny of crime 

and disorder matters, this could result in a failure to comply with a legislative 
requirement; the loss of an opportunity to improve or achieve an outcome 
for local communities with regards to crime and disorder issues; and it 
would affect the Council’s reputation. 

 
16.2.  These risks are being managed through the designation of a crime and 

disorder scrutiny committee, through the proposals to establish an agreed 
approach and protocol between the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Board and 
the Community Safety Partnership.   

 
17. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
17.1. The recommendations contained in this report will involve engagement with 

statutory and non-statutory partner organisations which may be involved in 
the Overview and Scrutiny process and specifically in the scrutiny of the 
crime and disorder partnerships.  This will help to inform and engage with 
Council partners in a constructive process.   

 
17.2. Council partner organisations may, as part of the Overview and Scrutiny 

process, be invited to attend Overview and Scrutiny meetings to give 
evidence as part of a scrutiny inquiry, they may be requested to provide 
written evidence to a scrutiny committee, or they may be asked to respond 
to Overview and Scrutiny recommendations on their area of service 
provision.  All of these things are already possible under previous legislative 
arrangements, but the proposals set out in this report will reinforce this role 
and provide more formalised arrangements for the scrutiny of crime and 
disorder partnerships.   

 
17.3. Implications for local residents may include future local public inquiries into 

crime and disorder matters, which may result in the consideration of crime 
and disorder issues of public concern being raised within a local democratic 
and public forum, with the view of tackling these issues to improve 
community well being.   

 

Page 55



 

18. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
18.1 The consideration of crime and disorder issues by Bromsgrove Overview 

and Scrutiny Committees will routinely give extra consideration of the 
equality and diversity implications of matters under consideration, including 
identification of particular issues for minority groups and access to services 
by all sections of the community.   

 
19. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
19.1 There are no value for money implications for the purpose of this report.   
 
20. CLIMATE CHANGE AND CARBON IMPLICATIONS 

 
20.1 There are no climate change and carbon implications for the purposes of 

this report.   
 

21. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Procurement Issues 
None 
Personnel Implications 
None 
Governance/Performance Management 
The proposals set out in this report will further develop the 
governance arrangements for Overview and Scrutiny through 
the scrutiny of crime and disorder partnerships.   
Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 
The proposals set out in this report will further develop the 
provisions for the scrutiny of crime and disorder partnerships.   
Policy 
None 
Environmental  
None 

 
 
22. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 

Chief Executive 
 

No 

Executive Director - Partnerships and Projects  
 

No 

Executive Director - Services 
 

No 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

No 

Page 56



 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Financial Services 
 

No 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

No 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 
 

No 

 
23. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

All Wards. 
 
24. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 The Scrutiny of Crime and Disorder Partnerships Protocol – 

Draft. 
 Appendix  2  Crimewatch, effective scrutiny of police and crime – Local 

Government Association 
 
25. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

~ The Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009. 
~ The National Support Framework, Delivering Safer and Confident 

Communities, guidance for the scrutiny of crime and disorder matters – 
England.   

CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   Michael Carr – Scrutiny Officer  
E Mail:  m.carr@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       01527 881407 
 

Page 57



 

The Scrutiny of Crime and Disorder Partnerships Protocol - 
DRAFT 

 
1. Introduction 
 
The purpose of this protocol is to describe the roles and relationships of the 
bodies involved in the scrutiny of crime and disorder partnerships and to outline 
the process for how this will work, in order to help build the relationships between 
the crime and disorder partnership bodies and the Overview and Scrutiny 
committees at (Local Authority Name) Council.  It is not intended to provide a 
ridged standard and should be interpreted flexibly where necessary to 
accommodate the partner agencies involved through mutual agreement.   
 
2. Roles and Responsibilities 
 
The Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership 
 
The (Local Authority Name) Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership (CDRP) 
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx (find their definition of what they do).   
 
The Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee 
 
In (Local Authority Name) the crime and disorder scrutiny committee has been 
designated as the (scrutiny committee name).  This committee may delegate 
crime and disorder scrutiny to subcommittees, as required.   
 
The role of the crime and disorder scrutiny committee is to examine how the 
CDRP members are discharging their crime and disorder functions and where 
appropriate, to make reports and recommendations to the CDRP partners.   
 
3. Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee Meetings 
 
The Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee meets at least 4 times a year.  Each 
meeting shall include a consideration of crime and disorder matters as a standing 
item.   
 
Subcommittees and/or Task Groups may be established by the committee that 
report back to the main committee and additional meetings may be convened for 
this purpose.   
 
Representation of the (name) Metropolitan Police Association 
 
The (name) Metropolitan Police Association (XXMPA) will be invited to nominate 
a Crime and Disorder Advisor to the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee, 
who will have a standing invitation to attend meetings of the committee and any 
subcommittees. 
 

Page 58



 

4. The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 
 
The CDRP should be requested annually to report to the Crime and Disorder 
Scrutiny Committee on the key crime and disorder issues in (Local Authority 
Name) and key targets for the CDRP – (The (Local Authority Name) Community 
Safety Strategy???).  This should help to identify the key issues where the Crime 
and Disorder Scrutiny Committee can make a constructive and useful 
contribution to the work of the CDRP.   
 
The Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee should, in consultation with the 
CDRP, decide which key issues of crime and disorder to consider during the year 
and these topics should be added to the Overview and Scrutiny Work 
Programme as a part of the normal Overview and Scrutiny work planning 
process.     
 
Additional topics for consideration may arise during the year.  These could either 
be brought up by the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee or referred to the 
scrutiny committee by the CDRP.  Crime and disorder issues for consideration by 
the committee may also arise from a Councillor Call for Action, referral from the 
Council or from the Leader and Cabinet or from a proposal submitted by a 
member of the public.   
 
5. Attendance Requests 
 
The Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee or subcommittees may request the 
attendance of a representative of the CDRP or a member body of the 
partnership.  This should be made in writing, giving at least one month notice and 
outline the reasons for the request.   
 
6. Requests for Information 
 
The Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee and subcommittees may request 
written information from the CDRP or a member body of the partnership, eg a 
report on a particular crime and disorder issue.  The request should be made in 
writing, giving at least one month notice, describing precisely what information is 
requested and outlining the reasons for the request.  If it is not possible for the 
information to be provided within the timescale required, the CDRP body should 
write back giving the reasons for this and giving a time when the information will 
become available and any alternative information available instead.   
 
7. Reviewing CDRP Performance 
 
The Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee should request the CDRP to report 
on its performance annually. This should include performance against its key 
targets and performance indicators.   
 
 

Page 59



 

8. Scrutiny Reports and Recommendations 
 
The Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee may make recommendations and/or 
a report to the CDRP or a member body.  Recommendations should be recorded 
in the minutes of the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee and referred to the 
CDRP (and where appropriate, specific board members), within 5 working 
days.  Recommendations may be accompanied by a report where an issue has 
been considered in depth.   
 
Recommendations should be made to the lead agencies responsible for making 
the executive decisions, identifying the lead agency and referencing other partner 
agencies involved.   
 
9. The Executive Response 
 
The CDRP and other executive decision makers identified in the scrutiny 
recommendations should respond within 6 weeks with an Executive Response 
and Executive Decisions.   
 
The Executive Response should briefly outline the response of the CDRP and/or 
the other executive decision makers identified and the Executive Decisions 
should either agree, amend or reject each recommendation.   
 
10. The Scrutiny Implementation Plan  
 
The CDRP and other executive decision makers identified should also provide, 
long with the Executive Response or within 3 months, a Scrutiny 
Implementation Plan outlining the specific actions they intend to take for each 
agreed or amended recommendation and identify the completion date for each.   
 
11. Implementation Tracking  
 
The Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee should ask representatives of the 
CDRP and other executive decision makers identified to report back on the 
implementation of the agreed or amended recommendations when all of the 
recommendations are due to be implemented.   
 
Where implementation spans over a long period of time, the Crime and Disorder 
Scrutiny Committee may request an interim progress report.   
 
The Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee should determine whether or not the 
recommendations are fully implemented and where recommendations are not 
implemented seek agreement on a new implementation date and reconsider the 
issue some time after this new date. 
 
If it should be impossible to implement the recommendation, the decision maker 
should be asked to provide an explanation for this and what action they decide to 
take instead.   

Page 60



1 – Crimewatch: effective scrutiny of police and crime

“What are the issues 
which concern people 
in the area you 
represent? Crime and 
anti-social behaviour 
are often mentioned. 
Crime and anti-social 
behaviour can blight 
the lives of individuals 
and communities. 
Thankfully, serious 
crime remains rare.  
But even low-level 
disorder such as graffiti 
and abandoned cars 
ruin our public spaces 
and are associated with 
fear of crime, holding 
back regeneration 
of disadvantaged 
areas and creating an 
environment in which 
crime can take hold. 

“Councillors as community leaders 
are in touch with these concerns. 
Councils have proved they can work 
side-by-side with a whole range of 
other agencies in order to tackle 
crime. Councillors have the expertise 
to listen to and act on the needs of 
local people. Residents now have 
new opportunities to talk to public 
agencies to find out about crime, to 
influence activity and to hold agencies 
to account. And the police are central 
to these arrangements.

“Our traditions see the police being 
anchored in the community, and we 
all know that policing is most effective 
when accountable to the people 
they serve. To ensure that the police 
focus on issues which matter to local 
people, councils can now extend their 
community leadership role, through 
the new scrutiny powers on crime and 
disorder. This provides an opportunity 
to hold public services to account, to 
review what is being done to tackle 
local problems, and to find better 
ways to reduce crime and disorder locally. 

“This publication 
aims to highlight 
what effective 
scrutiny of police 
and crime can 
achieve.”
Councillor Les Lawrence, Chairman, 
LGA Safer Communities Board

crimewatch
effective scrutiny of police and crime

Page 61



focuses on a priority issue

    
of subjects for review, choosing 
important, timely issues, where 
scrutiny can add value

      
service improvement work, or the 
programme of external inspectorates

is well planned

    
have clear objectives and a 
manageable scale

      
understanding of who needs to 
be influenced, and how to do this 
(stakeholder analysis)

builds profile and understanding

    
about forthcoming reviews with 
decision-makers and with the staff of 
the service

is innovative

     
innovation and dialogue, through 
finding new ways to work

     
gathering is taken, including hearing 
from the public and service users, 
whilst maintaining the focus of the 
review

is constructive

    
are engaged in the scrutiny debate 
in a way which contributes to a 
constructive outcome

     
have gone wrong focus on learning 
for the future

advocates change

    
appropriate, both to improve how 
the partnership tackles immediate 
problems, and which will feed into 
the longer term policy framework 
and budget. Necessary challenge is 
not evaded.

   
external service providers and other 
agencies, are supported by good 
communication and awareness of the 
need to build partnership working 

leads to action

      
communicated and support of 
the executive, the council and the 
partnership sought.

   
recommendations is carried out  
(and the scrutiny committee  
monitors that this happens). 

seven steps to success: a good scrutiny review . . .

further information
The statutory guidance for crime 
and disorder scrutiny can be found 



regions022.htm

The Centre for Public Scrutiny guide 
to Councillor Calls for Action can 

  

A wider conversation: effective 
scrutiny of Local Strategic 
Partnerships (February 2007) is 

 

   
Agreements is available from 

   A 
councillor’s guide to the new Local 
Area Agreements, and Changing 
places: Local Area Agreements and 
two-tier local government.  

    
     

Printed by: Newman Thomson, One 
    
      

     
vegetable-based inks 
 

Page 62



2 – Crimewatch: effective scrutiny of police and crime

the new scrutiny 
powers
Councils have new powers to 
scrutinise crime and disorder issues. 
Provisions for crime and disorder 
scrutiny in the Police and Justice Act 

      
       

time the Councillor Call for Action 
(CCfA) on crime and disorder came 
into effect. 

     
Reduction Partnerships are required 
to take part in scrutiny locally. 
This includes the main partners 
(‘responsible authorities’): the 
council, the police authority and 
police force, the primary care trust, 
the fire and rescue authority, plus 
the ‘co-operating bodies’: probation 
(soon to become a responsible 
authority), parish councils, NHS trusts, 
proprietors of independent schools, 
further education institutions.

the powers this scrutiny 
committee has are:

     
members are discharging their crime 
and disorder functions; 

      
by partners, and require attendance 
at meetings;

    
authorities and the co-operating 
partners) to respond to reports 
within 28 days, and ‘have regard’ to 
recommendations.

These new powers can be integrated 
into your existing arrangements 
for overview and scrutiny. There is 
flexibility about how this can be 
done. Your council may well have 
already have carried out scrutiny 
investigations on crime and disorder 
issues. This will have involved the 
police, and other organisations 
dealing with crime and anti-social 
behaviour, on a voluntary basis, so 
for many areas there is a strong 
foundation on which to build.

The police, and other partners, will 
be signed up to crime targets in the 

    
specific scrutiny powers in relation to 

    
but for the police, the Police and 
Justice Act provides a framework 
within which to review performance 

   
targets, and to make scrutiny 
recommendations.

CCfA gives councillors a new right 
to raise matters of concern to their 
constituents with their council’s 
overview and scrutiny committee, 
where other attempts to resolve the 

      
further tool to strengthen councillors 
in their role as advocates and 
champions for the communities  
that elected them. 

reducing the fear 
of crime: London 
Borough of Merton
Merton is the fourth safest borough 

    
categories of crime have fallen year 

       
the annual residents’ survey of 2008, 
fear of crime rose by 7 per cent to  

      
of Merton residents. The fear of 
crime appeared out of proportion 
to the risk, and was harming local 
people’s lives.

That’s why councillors from the 
   

undertook a scrutiny review on the 
issue of fear of crime. A detailed 
review of the national and local 
evidence was undertaken, for 
example identifying which parts 
of the borough had higher crime 
levels. Four members of the scrutiny 
commission met with the police 
Borough Commander and his 
colleagues to learn more about what 
was being done to reduce fear of 
crime in the area. The review chair 
attended meetings of the Merton 
Seniors Forum, and the student 
parliament at Merton College to 
discuss how fear of crime impacts on 
the daily lives of older and younger 
people. Recommendations to the 
Safer Merton partnership included, 
plans for better public information, 

Page 63



Crimewatch: effective scrutiny of police and crime – 3  

tackling issues in specific areas such 
as the town centres and station areas, 
and on public transport, and work on 
‘designing out crime’ in housing estates 
and town centres. Councillor Peter 
Southgate, who chaired the review, 
commented  
 

“Fear of crime blights 
people’s lives, and 
inhibits them from 
doing everything  
they might want to 
do. Whilst there’s 
no easy answer, a 
series of measures 
to address anti-social 
behaviour - rather 
than serious crime - 
can give them back 
the confidence they 
need to get out and 
about again, and  
lead more fulfilled 
lives.”

 
 
 

Councillor Peter Southgate  
London Borough of Merton

making 
arrangements to use 
the new powers

    
to set up an overview and scrutiny 
committee for crime and disorder, 
or designate an existing scrutiny 

     
many cases such a committee will 
already exist. There does not have 
to be a separate crime and disorder 
scrutiny committee or  
sub-committee. This function can be 
exercised by an overarching scrutiny 
committee, or scrutiny management 
committee, if this is what is preferred 
locally. These powers can also be 
exercised by task and finish groups or 
panels set up to carry out a specific 
scrutiny review. 

      
government, the powers are held by 
districts and county councils. Crime 

   
are at a district level, with a county 
strategy group providing  
co-ordination county-wide. There 
is local choice about how to carry 
out crime and disorder scrutiny in 
a two tier area, as long as every 
area is covered by arrangements for 
crime and disorder to be scrutinised.  
There is also a requirement that the 
committee with the responsibility to 
scrutinise crime and disorder issues 
should consider this at least once  
a year. 

hearing different 
views
The scrutiny committee dealing 
with crime and disorder issues can 
choose to co-opt additional people to 
become part of the committee. These 
could be long-term co-options, or for 
the purpose of a specific review. 

    
allows councils to introduce a  
co-option scheme granting voting 
rights to co-optees on scrutiny 
committees who are not councillors. 
Whether or not your council has such 
     

(Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 
   

committee to co-opt people and 
to give them voting rights. There 
should not be a greater number of 
these co-optees than the number of 
councillors voted onto the committee 
by the council. 

The Association of Police Authorities 
has urged councils to consider 
co-option of a member of the 
police authority onto the scrutiny 
committee. Openness, dialogue, and 
clarity of function with the police 
authority are vital, but bear in mind 
there are other ways in which these 
could be achieved, not only  
co-option. 

     
scrutiny as expert advisors, observers, 
through planned consultation and 
public meetings of various kinds, 
visits, and inviting witnesses to 
scrutiny hearings. 

Page 64



4 – Crimewatch: effective scrutiny of police and crime

what scrutiny might 
achieve
Some positive ways in which scrutiny 
could contribute to crime and 
disorder reduction:

     
   

Partnership in achieving the goals 
set out in the strategy to reduce 
crime, reviewing information about 
the incidence of crime and public 
confidence levels;

    
community, the police and other 
public services, in innovation, finding 
new ways to tackle the causes of 
crime and its consequences for the 
area; 

      
of the council executive to contribute 
to strategy development for crime 
and disorder reduction;

   
and openness locally in relation to 
non-council services;

     
local people in wider dialogue with 

    
Partnership. 
 
Scrutiny will work through a range of 
activities. These could include regular 
performance reports, question and 
answer sessions with the appropriate 
cabinet member and representatives 
of other partner bodies, one-off 
depth reviews, and a wide range of 
approaches to public involvement.

reviewing 
neighbourhood 
policing: 
Nottingham  
City Council
This scrutiny panel aimed to 
investigate whether neighbourhood 
policing in Nottingham contributed 
towards community safety, reduced 
crime and fear of crime. The review, 
was chaired by Councillor Cat Arnold, 
who said: 

“We chose three 
local beat areas 
for investigation. 
Councillors visited 
these three 
neighbourhoods 
to meet the police 
teams at their police 
stations, and we 
discussed policing of 
the neighbourhood 
with local residents 
and the police.  
We also heard  
from other 
contributors.”

The recommendations made 
particularly focused on getting 
different parts of the council to work 
better with the neighbourhood 
beat teams. This included 
the council’s neighbourhood 
management team; youth work; 
work on licensing to tackle alcohol-
related crime; and better public 
information on community safety 
issues. Recommendations also 
promoted broader involvement of 
ward councillors in meetings with 
police; and joint training between 
councillors, police, housing and other 
neighbourhood staff.

Councillor Cat Arnold 
Nottingham City Council  
 

Page 65



Crimewatch: effective scrutiny of police and crime – 5  

councillors tackling 
crime and disorder

   
Partnerships have existed since 

    
ensure that the incidence of 
crime and disorder, and levels of 
public confidence in the area are 
systematically assessed. A Crime 

    
frame their work. 

Scrutiny is just one of the democratic 
roles through which councillors lead 
and shape the work of Crime and 

 

Leadership: leaders and other 
executive members have a vital 

     
Reduction Partnerships. Councillors 
also play a leadership role in relation 
to the police as members of police 
authorities, alongside magistrates and 
independent nominees.

Strategy development: councillors 
    

     
the Sustainable Community Strategy 
which will all set out plans to reduce 
crime. 

Scrutiny: councils are increasingly 
involved in scrutinising other public 
services. As well as powers in relation 
to crime and policing, councils 
scrutinise NHS bodies and health 

  

Neighbourhood representation: 
at a neighbourhood level, there will 
be meetings between councillors, 
the police and the public which will 
review the incidence of crime in 
the area as well as levels of public 
confidence, and discuss how the 
council is working with the police to 
deal with this.  

 
the effects of 
criminal damage: 
Basildon District 
Council
Vandalism, particularly in the area’s 
parks and open spaces, and to public 
sector housing, was investigated 
by this review. Councillors wanted 
to understand why vandalism is 
committed, who it affects, and the 
level and cost of damage to  
council-owned land and property. 
This included graffiti, vandalism, 
arson, damage to cars and to 
property.

The task and finish group of four 
councillors gathered information 
from the police, university academics, 
relevant council staff, and the local 

    
provided a presentation with statistics 
on the extent of criminal damage locally.

There was detailed investigation 
of the costs of criminal damage 
to the council-owned parks and 
open spaces, and to their housing 
service initiatives to design out crime 

were considered. Risks to council 
houses left empty were of particular 
concern. The review also heard 
from the council’s graffiti removal 
service and community wardens. 
Recommendations covered actions 
which could be taken within the 
council, better reporting on the role 
of the crime and disorder reduction 
partnership to councilors, and better 

   
and champion for scrutiny, Councillor 
Sylvia Buckley, said:  
 

“ This was an early 
and successful 
overview and 
scrutiny review that 
identified a wide 
range of initiatives 
to reduce criminal 
damage in our 
district; the council 
continues to monitor 
progress and build 
upon the review 
outcomes.”

Councillor Sylvia Buckley 
Basildon District Council

Page 66



6 – Crimewatch: effective scrutiny of police and crime

Councils have had specific powers 
    

Councillors may want to consider 
locally how that has worked, and 
what pointers that provides for the 
scrutiny of crime partners. Here are 
some suggested lessons.

Agree how you are  
going to work 
From the outset, liaise with external 
services and partner organisations 
who may be subject to scrutiny. 
Create a protocol or code of conduct 
agreeing mutual roles, and practical 
arrangements about how you 
are going to work. Meet partners 
regularly to horizon-scan for future 
issues and review how work is 
progressing. 

Create positive expectations 
     

of services including the council; 
are on subjects seen as useful and 
positive by agencies under scrutiny; 
are contained and manageable in 
scale; are on topics where there 
is a consensus that “things need 
to change”. Use scrutiny to build 
effective partnerships.

Develop skills and understanding 
Joint training and development will 
help you learn about the culture 
and assumptions of different 

    
at the beginning. Members need 
basic knowledge about structures 
and responsibilities of service 
under scrutiny, but don’t let them 
be intimidated by professionals or 
jargon.

Scrutiny must be member-led 
    

  
under scrutiny understand the 
democratic role of members as 
community leaders – unlike other 
non-executives.

Plan and prioritise your work 
programme  

    
scrutiny can do – use its unique 
characteristics: democratic 
engagement, partnership building, 
local priorities and place-building. 

   
    

clear objectives. Be realistic – better 
to do a limited number of reviews 

      
priorities squeeze out local issues 
– you don’t have to take part in 
national consultations if it is not a 
local priority. 

Community and user involvement 
is vital 

   
elected members and community 
is clear for lay people. Allow time 
and resources for consultation, and 
use your imagination about how 
to do it. Use existing resources and 
organisations to consult, as well as 

     
people know how their involvement 
contributed to the review findings 
and subsequent changes.

Ensure that scrutiny  
makes a difference  

    
evidence -based and engage with 
influential people and organisations. 

   
recommendations, linked to evidence 
and public opinion, which are 
challenging but achievable. Allow 
scrutinised organisations to check 
your facts before publication.

Manage communications 
Build positive links with the local 
media and help them understand 
what scrutiny is. Use them to engage 
the public. Agree joint press releases 
if possible and agree who will deal 
with the media.

Evaluate and learn from your 
experience 
Monitor the response to 
recommendations. Review your 
projects and work programme to see 
what could be improved; engage 
those being scrutinised in this. 

lessons from health scrutiny

The lessons from health scrutiny are from A wider conversation: effective scrutiny of Local Strategic Partnerships 

Page 67



Crimewatch: effective scrutiny of police and crime – 7  

the bigger picture, 
locally

    
first of the new Comprehensive 
Area Assessment (CAA) or One 
Place reports. This will review the 
characteristics of the area and how 
well it is being served by public 

    
and problems not being tackled. 
Scrutiny reports will be one way  
that the council can show it is 
tackling any problems of crime in the 
area, as part of this assessment.

avoiding gang 
culture: Newcastle 
upon Tyne
Between January 2007 and March 
2008, there was high-profile media 
coverage of teenagers who were shot 

      
in gang-related incidents. Councillors 
wanted to know whether the factors 
existed for the development of 
this type of gang-related crime in 
Newcastle, and how the city could 
protect against it. 

Councillors heard from researchers 
on gang activity, and discussed the 
local situation with Northumbria 
police, the youth offending team, 
and community groups. Councillor 

    

“Most young people 
in Newcastle lead 
fulfilling, productive 
lives. Some gather 
in groups which 
can intimidate older 
residents, but this is 
overwhelmingly just 
friends socialising. 
For a variety of 
historical and 
cultural reasons” 

Newcastle has not 
been affected by the 
type of gang culture 
seen in other cities. 
Even so, we cannot 
be complacent.” 

Councillor Ian Graham 
Newcastle City Council

The review recommended that 
guidance on gang culture should 
be produced for neighbourhood 
crime teams, for colleges of further 
education and youth workers. There 
should be monitoring by relevant 
agencies and pre-emptive action if 
necessary. Public information should 
provide reassurance, promote the 
positive achievements of young 
people, and equip councillors to 
tackle concerns raised with them 
by residents. Agencies should work 
together to tackle the root causes 
of economic and social exclusion, 
such as lack of skills and lack of 
political and social networks within 
communities.

Page 68


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Board held on 9th June 2009
	4 Joint Overview and Scrutiny Board Work Programme 2009-2010
	5 Update of the Medium Term Financial Plan 2010/11-2012/13
	Scrutiny Budget Appends 011209

	6 Treasury Strategy
	7 Scrutiny of Crime and Disorder
	Crimewatch, effective scrutiny of police and crime


